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Dawn... Golden rays glitter in the horizon 
Everyone awakens from slumber, ready for the new day 

With body and heart full of vigor 
7-Eleven is ready to stride forward 

Alongside you every hour, every minute 

¬“¡‡™â“...· ß ’∑Õß‡√◊Õß√Õß∑’Ë‡ âπ¢Õ∫øÑ“ 
∑ÿ°™’«‘µµ◊Ëπ¢÷Èπ®“°À≈—∫„À≈ æ√âÕ¡°â“« Ÿà«—π„À¡à 

¥â«¬·√ß°“¬ ·√ß„® ∑’Ë‡µÁ¡‡ªïò¬¡‰ª¥â«¬æ≈—ß 
‡´‡«àπÕ’‡≈ø‡«àπ æ√âÕ¡∑’Ë®–°â“«‡¥‘π‰ª¢â“ßÀπâ“ 

‡§’¬ß§Ÿà°—∫§ÿ≥ ∑ÿ°‡«≈“ ∑ÿ°π“∑’ 
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ª√—™≠“Õß§å°√ 
‡√“ª√“√∂π“√Õ¬¬‘È¡®“°≈Ÿ°§â“ ¥â«¬∑’¡ß“π∑’Ë¡’§«“¡ ÿ¢ 
 
«‘ —¬∑—»πå 
‡√“§◊ÕºŸâ „Àâ∫√‘°“√§«“¡ –¥«°´◊ÈÕ·°à≈Ÿ°§â“∑ÿ°™ÿ¡™π 
 
æ—π∏°‘® 
1. ¡ÿàß¡—ËπÕ¬à“ß‰¡àÀ¬ÿ¥¬—Èß„π°“√ √√À“·≈– àß¡Õ∫  ‘π§â“·≈–∫√‘°“√∑’Ë≈Ÿ°§â“ –¥«°´◊ÈÕµâÕß°“√ 
2.  √√À“∑Ì“‡≈√â“π “¢“∑’Ë‡¢â“∂÷ß≈Ÿ°§â“„Àâ§√Õ∫§≈ÿ¡∑—Ë«ª√–‡∑» 
3.  √â“ß¿“«–ºŸâπÌ“∑ÿ°√–¥—∫·≈– àß‡ √‘¡„Àâ‡°‘¥∫√√¬“°“»°“√∑Ì“ß“π∑’Ë¥’ 
4.  √â“ß —¡æ—π∏¿“æ∑’Ë¥’°—∫ —ß§¡·≈–™ÿ¡™π 
5.  √â“ßÕß§å°√§ÿ≥¿“æ·≈–¡ÿàß ŸàÕß§å°√·Ààß°“√‡√’¬π√Ÿâ 
6. ∫√‘À“√°‘®°“√„Àâ¡’º≈µÕ∫·∑π°“√≈ß∑ÿπ∑’Ë¥’·≈–∫√‘À“√µ“¡À≈—°∏√√¡“¿‘∫“≈ 
 
Corporate Philosophy 

Through happy employees, we desire to see smiles from our customers. 

 

Vision 

We provide convenience for customers in all communities. 

 

Mission 

1. Continuously strive to select and deliver products and services to meet customers’  

 needs 

2.  Select locations easily accessible to customers nationwide 

3.  Create leadership in all-level staff and promote a good working atmosphere 

4.  Build positive relationships with society and communities 

5.  Establish a quality organization and strive to become a learning organization 

6.  Manage the business to yield good returns and with good corporate governance 
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¢âÕ¡Ÿ≈∑—Ë«‰ª
General Information 

∫√‘…—∑ ´’.æ’. ‡´‡«àπÕ’‡≈ø‡«àπ ®”°—¥ (¡À“™π) (ç∫√‘…—∑é) 
‡ªìπ∫√‘…—∑À≈—°„π°≈ÿà¡∏ÿ√°‘®°“√µ≈“¥·≈–°“√®—¥®”Àπà“¬¢Õß  
‡§√◊Õ‡®√‘≠‚¿§¿—≥±å ª√–°Õ∫∏ÿ√°‘®À≈—° §◊Õ ∏ÿ√°‘®§â“ª≈’°ª√–‡¿∑  
√â“π§â“ –¥«°´◊ÈÕ¿“¬„µâ‡§√◊ËÕßÀ¡“¬°“√§â“ ç7-Elevené „πª√–‡∑»‰∑¬ 
·≈–ª√–°Õ∫∏ÿ√°‘®√â“π§â“ª≈’°¢π“¥„À≠à (ç´ÿª‡ªÕ√å‡´Áπ‡µÕ√åé) ¿“¬„µâ 
‡§√◊ËÕßÀ¡“¬°“√§â“ ç‚≈µ— é „π‡¢µ≈ÿà¡·¡àπÈ”·¬ß´’‡°’¬ß  “∏“√≥√—∞
ª√–™“™π®’π πÕ°®“°π—Èπ¬—ßª√–°Õ∫∏ÿ√°‘®µà“ßÊ ∑’Ë‡ªìπ°“√ π—∫ πÿπ
∏ÿ√°‘®À≈—° ‡™àπ ∏ÿ√°‘®‡ªìπµ—«·∑π√—∫™”√–§à“ ‘π§â“·≈–∫√‘°“√ 
(ç‡§“πå‡µÕ√å‡´Õ√å«‘ é) ∏ÿ√°‘®º≈‘µ·≈–®”Àπà“¬Õ“À“√·™à·¢Áß·≈–‡∫‡°Õ√’Ë 
(ç´’.æ’.§â“ª≈’°·≈–°“√µ≈“¥é) ∏ÿ√°‘®®”Àπà“¬·≈–´àÕ¡·´¡Õÿª°√≥å 
§â“ª≈’° (ç√’‡∑≈≈‘ß§å ‰∑¬·≈π¥å) ∏ÿ√°‘®„Àâ∫√‘°“√™”√–§à“ ‘π§â“·≈–
∫√‘°“√ºà“π∫—µ√ ¡“√å∑°“√å¥ (ç‰∑¬ ¡“√å∑°“√å¥) ∏ÿ√°‘®„Àâ∫√‘°“√
¥â“π√–∫∫ “√ π‡∑» (ç‚°´Õø∑åé) ∏ÿ√°‘®∫√‘°“√¢π àß·≈–°√–®“¬
 ‘π§â“ (ç‰¥π“¡‘§ ·¡π‡π®‡¡âπ∑å) ∏ÿ√°‘®„Àâ∫√‘°“√¥â“π°“√µ≈“¥ 
(ç‡ÕÁ¡ ‡Õ ‡ÕÁ¡ Œ“√å∑é) ·≈–∏ÿ√°‘®‚√ß‡√’¬πÕ“™’«–»÷°…“¥â“π§â“ª≈’° 
(ç‚√ß‡√’¬πªí≠≠“¿‘«—≤πå‡∑§‚π∏ÿ√°‘®é) ‡ªìπµâπ ªí®®ÿ∫—π ”π—°ß“π  
µ—ÈßÕ¬Ÿà‡≈¢∑’Ë 283 Õ“§“√ ’∫ÿ≠‡√◊Õß 1 ∂ππ ’≈¡ ·¢«ß ’≈¡ ‡¢µ∫“ß√—° 
°√ÿß‡∑æ¡À“π§√ 10500 ‚∑√»—æ∑å 0-2677-9000 ‚∑√ “√  
0-2238-1767 ‡≈¢∑–‡∫’¬π∫√‘…—∑ 0107542000011 ‡«Á∫‰´µå §◊Õ 
www.7eleven.co.th 

 
 

C.P. Seven Eleven Public Co., Ltd. (“the 

Company”) is the flagship company of the Charoen Pokphand 

Group’s marketing and distribution business. The Company’s 

main business is operating convenience stores under the   

“7-Eleven” trademark in Thailand and large-scale retail stores 

(“supercenters”) under the “Lotus” trademark in Yangtzegiang 

District, the People’s Republic of China. Furthermore, the 

Company operates other related businesses such as bill 

payment collection service (“Counter Service”), manufacturing 

and sale of frozen foods and bakery (C.P. Retailing and 

Marketing”), sale and maintenance of retail equipment 

(“Retailink Thailand”), payment for products and services though 

smart cards (“Thai Smart Card”), information technology 

services (“GOSOFT”), logistics services (Dynamic Management”), 

marketing services (“M.A.M. Heart”), and retailing vocational 

school (“Panyapiwat Techno Business School”).  

The Company office is located at 283 Sriboonrueng 

Building 1, Silom Road, Silom Sub-district, Bangrak District, 

Bangkok 10500. Telephone 0-2677-9000 Facsimile 0-2238-1767 

Company Registration Number 0107542000011 Website 

www.7eleven.co.th 
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∫√‘…—∑ ´’.æ’. ‡´‡«àπÕ’‡≈ø‡«àπ ®Ì“°—¥ (¡À“™π) ·≈–∫√‘…—∑¬àÕ¬  Ì“À√—∫ß«¥ªï ‘Èπ ÿ¥«—π∑’Ë 31 ∏—π«“§¡ 2546 ∂÷ß 31 ∏—π«“§¡ 2548 
C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries For fiscal years ending December 31, 2003 to December 31, 2005 

   2003/2546 2004/2547 2005/2548 
¢âÕ¡Ÿ≈®“°ß∫°“√‡ß‘π√«¡ (≈â“π∫“∑)
Consolidated Financial Information (Baht million) 

1. ¬Õ¥¢“¬ ÿ∑∏‘·≈–√“¬‰¥â§à“∫√‘°“√ 
  Net sales and Services income 58,382 74,622 94,356

 2. √“¬‰¥â√«¡ 
Total Revenues 60,731 78,366 98,948

 3. °Ì“‰√ ÿ∑∏‘ 
Net Profit 1,339 1,696 1,508

 4. ‡ß‘π ¥ ÿ∑∏‘‰¥â¡“®“°°‘®°√√¡¥Ì“‡π‘πß“π 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 3,227 6,654 5,883

 5.  ‘π∑√—æ¬å√«¡ 
  Total Assets 21,712 29,011 40,230

 6. Àπ’È ‘π√«¡ 
  Total Liabilities 12,953 19,082 29,708

 7.  à«π¢ÕßºŸâ∂◊ÕÀÿâπ√«¡ 
  Total Shareholder’s equity 8,759 9,928 10,522

¢âÕ¡Ÿ≈µàÕÀÿâπ (∫“∑) 
Per Share Information (Baht) 

1. ¡Ÿ≈§à“µ“¡∫—≠™’µàÕÀÿâπ 
  Book value per share 21.5 22.6 2.4

2. °Ì“‰√ ÿ∑∏‘µàÕÀÿâπ 
  Earnings per share 3.28 3.85 0.34

Õ—µ√“ à«π∑“ß°“√‡ß‘π (√âÕ¬≈–) 
Financial Ratios (%) 

1. Õ—µ√“°Ì“‰√¢—Èπµâπ 
  Gross margin (Sales and Services) 18.7% 18.6% 18.3%

 2. Õ—µ√“°Ì“‰√®“°°“√¥Ì“‡π‘πß“π 
  EBIT margin 3.3% 3.3% 1.4%

 3. Õ—µ√“°Ì“‰√ ÿ∑∏‘ 
  Net profit margin 2.2% 2.2% 1.5%

 4. º≈µÕ∫·∑πµàÕ ‘π∑√—æ¬å√«¡ 
  Return on total assets 6.9% 6.7% 4.4%

 5. º≈µÕ∫·∑πµàÕ à«π¢ÕßºŸâ∂◊ÕÀÿâπ 
  Return on total shareholder’s equity 17.7% 18.2% 14.7%

¢âÕ¡Ÿ≈∑“ß°“√‡ß‘π‚¥¬ √ÿª 
Summary of Financial Information  
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Messages  
     from the Chairman and  
the Chief Executive Officer 

C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited operates its 

business with dedication to providing outstanding services for 

customers in every region across the country through a modern 

store network of more than 3,000 branches and a selection of 

products and services that meet customers’ needs. The Company 

has continuously developed its services to improve efficiency, 

deliver greater convenience and speedy services, and promptly 

respond to customers’ constantly evolving demands. Ultimately, 

the Company hopes its customers will receive utmost convenience 

from its comprehensive range of products and services.  

At the end of 2005, the Company launched a digital cash 

card service, “Smart Purse”, to enhance customers’ convenience in 

making payments for products and services. With Smart Purse, 

customers no longer have to carry large sums of money and waste 

time waiting for change. Every time payments are made through 

Smart Purse, customers accumulate points which can be used as 

cash at all 7-Eleven outlets nationwide. In 2006, customers will be 

able to use Smart Purse at other locations such as restaurants, 

cinemas, gas stations, the Bangkok Subway, the BTS Skytrain, the 

expressway, and more than 10,000 ATMs. Smart Purse is expected 

to be used by more than one million card holders. 

At the same time, the large-scale retail store business, Lotus 

Supercenters in Shanghai and the central region of the People’s 

Republic of China, continuously expanded the number of 

branches to ensure preparedness for future business expansion.  

With the objective of strong and sustained growth, the 

Company has established a policy to become a learning 

organization using the Thailand Quality Award as a guideline. 

Knowledge management is not a new concept for 7-Eleven. 

Existing knowledge is constantly integrated to conceive new 

knowledge that is beneficial to the organization in the long-run. 

When everyone in the organization uses this knowledge, a cycle of 

learning that provides never-ending knowledge is created, 

resulting in increased competitive advantage and efficiency of 

personnel in the company.  

For over 12 years, the Company has strived to develop the 

quality of education in co-operation with the Office of the 

Vocational Education Commission, the Ministry of Education 

through a bilateral education system that is, coursework along with 

direct working experience for vocational students across the 

country. 7-Eleven is the first retail company to help reform 

vocational education in Thailand. At the beginning of 2005, the 

Company established a vocational school for retail education, 

Panyapiwat Techno Business, which emphasizes learning through 

real-life working experience. Students receive remuneration for 

their work and are guaranteed jobs upon graduation. Presently, the 

school offers primary vocational education and higher vocational 

education. In the near future, the school will also offer bachelor’s 

degree programs and establish campuses nationwide. This is 

another way of developing the new generation of youth to love 

learning, possess diversified skills, and be service-minded, 

technologically-savvy and socially-responsible citizens.  

In 2005, the Company was ranked in the Top Quartile for 

Good Corporate Governance among listed companies of the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand. The Company operates its business 

according to the principles of good corporate governance with an 

effective internal audit system and is dedicated to meeting the 

needs and satisfaction of all stakeholder groups whether 

customers, employees, business partners, shareholders and society. 

The Company would like to express heartfelt thanks to all its 

shareholders and well-wishers for their trust in the Company’s 

business operations for continued success and sustained growth in 

the future 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont            Mr. Korsak Chairasmisak 

Chairman                                                      Chief Executive Officer 
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§≥–°√√¡°“√∫√‘…—∑

π“¬‚°‡¡π ¿—∑√°‘√¡¬å  
Mr.Komain Bhatarabhirom 

°√√¡°“√Õ‘ √– 
·≈–ª√–∏“π°√√¡°“√ 
Independent Director and  
Chairman of the Audit Committee 

√.∑.  ÿ™“¬ ‡™“«å«‘»‘…∞ 
Lieut. Suchai Jaovisidha 

°√√¡°“√Õ‘ √–·≈– 
ª√–∏“π°√√¡°“√µ√«® Õ∫  
Independent Director and  
Chairman of the  
Audit Committee 

π“¬ª√’¥’ ∫ÿ≠¬—ß 
Mr.Pridi Boonyoung 

°√√¡°“√Õ‘ √– 
·≈–°√√¡°“√µ√«® Õ∫  
Independent Director and  
Audit Committee  

π“¬º¥ÿß ‡µ™–»√‘π∑√å 
Mr. Padoong Techasarintr 

°√√¡°“√Õ‘ √–·≈– 
°√√¡°“√µ√«® Õ∫  
Independent Director  
and Audit Committee  

π“¬∏π‘π∑å ‡®’¬√«ππ∑å 
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont 

ª√–∏“π°√√¡°“√  
Chairman   

π“¬°àÕ»—°¥‘Ï ‰™¬√—»¡’»—°¥‘Ï 
Mr. Korsak Chairasmisak 

√Õßª√–∏“π°√√¡°“√·≈– 
ª√–∏“π‡®â“Àπâ“∑’Ë∫√‘À“√  
Vice Chairman and  
Chief Executive Officer 

π“¬ ÿ¿°‘µ ‡®’¬√«ππ∑å 
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont 

°√√¡°“√  
Director 

π“ß “«¬ÿπ ‡™’¬ß 
Ms.Yun Chiang 

°√√¡°“√  
Director  

π“¬Õ¥‘‡√° »√’ª√–∑—°…å 
Mr. Adirek Sripratak 

°√√¡°“√ 
Director 

π“¬Õ∏÷° Õ—»«“π—π∑å 
Mr.Athueck Asvanund  

°√√¡°“√ 
Director 

π“¬Õ”√ÿß  √√æ ‘∑∏‘Ï«ß»å 
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong 

°√√¡°“√ 
Director 

π“¬≥√ß§å ‡®’¬√«ππ∑å  
Mr. Narong Chearavanont 

°√√¡°“√ 
Director 

π“¬ª√–‡ √‘∞  ®“√ÿæπ‘™ 
Mr.Prasert Jarupanich 

°√√¡°“√ 
Director 

π“¬æ‘∑¬“ ‡®’¬√«‘ ‘∞°ÿ≈ 
Mr.Pittaya Jearavisitkul 

°√√¡°“√·≈– 
√Õßª√–∏“π‡®â“Àπâ“∑’Ë∫√‘À“√  
Director and  
Deputy Chief Executive Officer 

π“¬ªî¬–«—≤πå ∞‘µ– —∑∏“«√°ÿ≈ 
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul 

°√√¡°“√·≈–°√√¡°“√ºŸâ®—¥°“√ 
Director and Managing Director  

Board of Directors 
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π“¬ ÿ√æ—π∏å ªÿ  ‡¥Á® 
Mr.Suraphan Pussadej 

√Õß°√√¡°“√ºŸâ®—¥°“√ 
 “¬ß“π∑√—æ¬“°√∫ÿ§§≈ 
Vice President - Human resource 

π“¬°¡≈ »—°¥‘Ï‡¥™¬πµå 
Mr.Kamol Sakdejayont 

√Õß°√√¡°“√ºŸâ®—¥°“√ 
 “¬ß“π∫—≠™’·≈–°“√‡ß‘π 
Vice President -  
Accounting and Finance  

π“¬∏“π‘π∑√å ∫Ÿ√≥¡“π‘µ 
Mr.Tanin Buranamanit 

√Õß°√√¡°“√ºŸâ®—¥°“√ 
 “¬ß“πªØ‘∫—µ‘°“√·≈–°“√µ≈“¥ 
Vice President - Operation and Marketing 

π“¬™«π π‘Ë¡°‘µµ‘°ÿ≈ 
Mr.Chuan Nimkittikul 

√Õß°√√¡°“√ºŸâ®—¥°“√ 
 “¬ß“π®—¥´◊ÈÕ·≈–°√–®“¬ ‘π§â“ 
Vice President - Purchasing and 
Distribution  

π“¬ ÿ«‘∑¬å °‘Ëß·°â« 
Mr.Suwit Kingkaew 

√Õß°√√¡°“√ºŸâ®—¥°“√ 
 “¬ß“π∫√‘À“√∑—Ë«‰ª 
Vice President – General Management   
 

π“¬‚°…“ æß»å ÿæ—≤πå 
Mr.Kosa Pongsupath 

√Õß°√√¡°“√ºŸâ®—¥°“√ 
 “¬ß“π‡∑§‚π‚≈¬’ “√ π‡∑» 
Vice President – Information 
Technology 

Executive  Officers 
§≥–ºŸâ∫√‘À“√ 

π“¬°àÕ»—°¥‘Ï ‰™¬√—»¡’»—°¥‘Ï 
Mr. Korsak Chairasmisak 

√Õßª√–∏“π°√√¡°“√·≈– 
ª√–∏“π‡®â“Àπâ“∑’Ë∫√‘À“√  
Vice Chairman and  
Chief Executive Officer 

π“¬æ‘∑¬“ ‡®’¬√«‘ ‘∞°ÿ≈ 
Mr.Pittaya Jearavisitkul 

°√√¡°“√·≈– 
√Õßª√–∏“π‡®â“Àπâ“∑’Ë∫√‘À“√  
Director and  
Deputy Chief Executive Officer 

π“¬ªî¬–«—≤πå ∞‘µ– —∑∏“«√°ÿ≈ 
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul 

°√√¡°“√·≈–°√√¡°“√ºŸâ®—¥°“√ 
Director and Managing Director  
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Director and Management Biography 

Lieut.Suchai  Jaovisidha  
 • 65 years old  
Position • Independent director and Chairman of the Audit 

committee 
Education • Bachelor Degree in Economics London University 
 • Degree from National Defence College of Thailand; 

Class 366 
Experience 
Present • Chairman, Road Accident Victims Protection Co., Ltd. 
 • Chairman, Krungthai Axa Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 
2001-2004 • Executive Committee, Krung Thai Bank Pcl. 
1995-2000 • Director – General, Department of Internal Trade 
1991-1994 • Director – General, Department of Intellectual 

Property 
1990-1991 • Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Commerce 
Relationship • - 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005 : 
 • 4 times out of 6 meetings 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)  
2003 • Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 
 
Remark Resign from a directorship and Chairman of the Audit Committee effective November 12, 2005. 

 
 
 
Komain  Bhatarabhirom 
 • 73 years old  
Position • Chairman of Audit Committee and Independent 

Director 
Education • Docteur de l’Université de Paris  
 • Doctor of Law (Honorary) Chulalongkorn University 
 • Barrister-at-Law, Thai Bar.  
 • Bachelor of Law, Thammasat University  
Experience   
1998-2001 • Judge, The Constitutional Court  
1987-1993 • Attorney General 
1992-1996 • Chairman of the Committee on Interior 

Administration, Senate 
1992-1997 • Member of Legislative Committee, Office of the 

Council of State 
1993-1997 • Member of the Committee on Appeal, The Securities 

and Exchange Act 1992 
1984-1993 • Director, Provincial Electricity Authority 
1985-1993 • Director, Krung Thai Bank 
1987-1993  • Director, Thai Airways Public Company Limited 
Present • Member of the Law Committee, The National 

Research Council of Thailand 
 • Chairman of Law Committee, Ministry of Labour  
 • Member of the Law Reform Committee, Ministry of 

Culture 
 • Professor, Faculty of Law, Chulalongkorn 

University 
Relationship • - 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005: 
 • - 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) 
 • - 
Remark Appointed as a Chairman of the Audit Committee and Independent director effective December 
28, 2005 

 Mr. Pridi  Boonyoung 
 • 67 years old  
Position • Independent director and Audit committee 
Education • Master Degree in Laws Yale University, USA 
 • Bachelor Degree in Laws Thammasat University 
 • Degree from National Defence College of Thailand 
Experience 
1997-1998 • Director – General, Treasury Department 
1996-1997 • Director – General, Customer Department 
1993-1996 • Director – General, The Comptroller General’s 

Department 
Relationship • - 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005: 
 • 5 times out of 6 meetings 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)  
2005 • Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Padoong  Techasarintr  
 • 64 years old  
Position • Independent director and Audit committee 
Education • Bachelor Degree in Business and Administration 

Thammasat University 
Experience 
 • Executive Director, Siam City Bank Plc. 
 • Director – Vice President, Siam City Bank Plc. 
Relationship • - 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005  : 
 • 6 times out of 6 meetings 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)  
2002 • The role of Chairman 
2003 • Director Certification Program (DCP) 
2005 • Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 
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Mr. Dhanin  Chearavanont  
 • 66 years old  
Position • Chairman 
Education • Degree from National Defence College of Thailand 
 • Commercial School, Hong Kong 
 • Shantou Secondary School, China 
Experience 
1993-present • Chairman, True Move Corporation Plc. 
1989-present • Chairman and CEO, Charoen Pokphand Group Co., 

Ltd. 
Relationship • Mr.Soopakij and Mr.Narong’s father 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005  : 
 • 4 times out of 6 meetings 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)  
2005 • Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 
 
 
 
Mr. Korsak Chairasmisak 
 • 53 years old  
Position • Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
Education • Bachelor Degree in Economics Thammasat University 
Experience 
1990-present • Executive Vice Chairman, Charoen Pokphand Group 
Relationship • - 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005  : 
 • 6 times out of 6 meetings 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)  
2000 • Director Certification Program (DCP) 
 
  
  
 
 
Mr. Umroong  Sanphasitvong 
 • 52 years old  
Position • Director 
Education • Master Degree in Business and Administration  
 • Bachelor Degree in Business and Administration 

Thammasat University 
Experience 
Present • Deputy Group CFO, Charoen Pokphand Group Co., 

Ltd. 
1980 • Deputy Division Manager – Accounting and Finance, 

Charoen Pokphand Group Co., Ltd. 
2004-present • Director, Ayudhya Allianz C.P. Public Company 

Limited 
2001-present • Director, True Move Corporation Public Company Limited 
 • Director, CPPC Public Company Limited 
2000-present • Director, Allianz C.P. Company Limited 
1999-2005 • Director, Vinythai Public Company Limited 
Relationship • - 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005: 
 • 6 times out of 6 meetings 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)  
2001 • Director Certification Program (DCP) 
 

Mr. Soopakij  Chearavanont 
 • 41 years old  
Position • Director 
Education • Bachelor Degree in Business and Administration  
  New York University, USA 
Experience 
Present • Chairman, Chia Tai Enterprises International Ltd. 
2003-present • Director, True Move Corporation Plc. 
 • Director, TA Orange Co., Ltd. 
2000-present • Chairman of the Executive Committee, Telecom 

Holding Ltd. 
1998-present • Chairman, United Broadcasting Corporation Plc. 
Relationship • Mr.Dhanin’s son and Mr.Narong’s brother 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005: 
 • 2 times out of 6 meetings 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) 
 • - 
 
Mr. Narong Chearavanont 
 • 40 years old  
Position • Director 
Education • Bachelor Degree in Finance and International 

Business, New York University, USA 
Experience 
2002-Present • President, Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store 

Co., Ltd. 
Relationship • Mr.Dhanin’s son and Mr.Soopakij’s brother 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005: 
 • 2 times out of 6 meetings 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) 
 • - 
   
 
 
Mr. Adirek Sripratak 
 • 60 years old  
Position • Director  
Education • Honorary Doctorate degree (Science) Maejo 

University 
Experience 
Present • Honor president, Thai Broiler Processing Exporters 

Association 
2003-present • Director, Charoen Pokphand Foods Plc. 
2003-present • President and CEO, Charoen Pokphand Foods Plc. 
1999-present • Executive director, Charoen Pokphand Foods Plc. 
Relationship • - 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005: 
 • 2 times out of 6 meetings 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)  
2001 • Director Certification Program (DCP) 
2005 • Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 
 
Remark Appointed as a director effective on August 11, 2005. 
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Mr. Athueck Asvanund 
 • 54 years old  
Position • Director  
Education • LLm. (Specialized in International Legal Studies),  
  New York University, USA 
 • Certification in the Orientation Program in the US 

Legal System, Law Centre, Georgetown University, 
Washington D.C. 

 • Bachelor Degree in Laws (Honor)  
  Thammasat University 
Experience 
Present • Vice Chairman and Group General Counsel 
  True Move Corporation Public Co., Ltd. 
 • Group General Counsel, Charoen Pokphand Group 
 • Director, United Broadcasting Corporation   

Public Co., Ltd. 
 • Director, TA Orange Co., Ltd. 
 • Director, True Multimedia Co., Ltd. 
 • Director, Telecom Holding Co., Ltd. 
Relationship • - 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005: 
 • 2 times out of 6 meetings 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)  
2005 • Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 
 
Remark Resign from directorship effective on August 11, 2005. 

 
 Ms. Yun Chiang 
 • 38 years old  
Position • Director 
Education • Master of Business Administration Degree, The 

Kellogg Graduate School of Management at the 
Northwestern University, USA 

Experience 
2002-present • Director, Direct Investment AIG Investment 

Corporation (ASIA) Ltd. 
2002 • Director, Tse Sui Luen Investment (China) Ltd. & 

Infinite Assets Corp 
2000 • Director, China Hongkong Photo Products Holding 

and Geoby International Holdings Ltd. and its affiliate 
& subsidiaries 

Relationship • - 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005: 
 • 4 times out of 6 meetings 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) 
 • - 

 
Mr. Prasert  Jarupanich 
 • 57 years old  
Position • Director 
Education • Program for Management Development (PMD) 
  Harvard Business School 
 • Ph.D. Industrial Engineering and Management  
  Oklahoma State University 
 • Master Degree in Computer Science 
  Bachelor Degree in Computer Science 
  University of Missouri at Rolla 
Experience 
1999-present • Director, Siam Makro 
1988-present • Vice President – Marketing and Distribution Group, 

Charoen Pokphand Group Co., Ltd. 
Relationship • - 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005: 
 • 5 times out of 6 meetings 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)  
2004 • Director Certification Program (DCP) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Pittaya Jearavisitkul 
 • 50 years old  
Position • Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer 
Education • Master Degree in Business Administration 
 • Bachelor Degree in Economics (Honor) 
  Thammasat University 
Experience 
1993-1998  • Vice President - Marketing and Distribution Group, 
  Charoen Pokphand Group Co., Ltd. 
Relationship • - 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005: 
 • 6 times out of 6 meetings 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)  
2000 • Director Certification Program (DCP) 
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Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul 
 • 52 years old  
Position • Director and Managing Director 
Education • Bachelor Degree in Marketing  
  Ramkhamhaeng University 
Experience 
1996-1998 • Vice President – Operation : C.P. Seven Eleven Plc. 
Relationship • - 
Attendance at the Board of Directors’ Meeting during 2005  : 
 • 6 times out of 6 meetings 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)  
2001 • Director Certification Program (DCP) 
 
 
 
Mr. Suraphan  Pussadej 
 • 57 years old  
Position • Vice President – Human Resource 
Education • Master Management Degree, University of Detroit  
 • Bachelor Degree in Law (Honor)  
  Thammasat University 
Experience 
2005-Present • Deputy Chief Executive Officer, S Khonkaen Public 

Co., Ltd. 
 • Assistant Chief Executive Officer, C.P. Seven Eleven 

Public Co., Ltd. 

  • Advisor, Civil Servant Commission for Bureaucratic  
 Development  

         • Advisor, Walailuck University  
          • Advisor, Thammasat University 
1996-2004 • Corporate Human Resource Director,  
  Paper & Packaging Business, Siam Cement Group (SCG) 
1974-1996 • Human Resource Manager Siam Cement Group (SCG) 
Relationship • - 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) 
 • -  
 
 
Mr. Kamol Sakdejayont 
 • 56 years old  
Position • Vice President – Accounting and Finance 
Education • Master Degree in Business Administration 
  Thammasat University 
 • Bachelor Degree in Accountancy 
  Chulalongkorn University 
Experience 
1993-1998 • Assistant Vice President – Accounting and Finance, 

C.P. Seven Eleven Plc. 
Relationship • - 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)  
2004 • Director Certification Program (DCP) 
 
Remark Pass away on February 1, 2006 

Mr. Tanin  Buranamanit 
 • 41 years old  
Position • Vice President – Operation and Marketing 
Education • Master Degree in Marketing  
  Thammasat University 
Experience 
1999 • Assistant Vice President – Marketing, C.P. Seven 

Eleven Plc. 
1998 • Assistant Vice President, Sunny Supermarket Co., Ltd. 
Relationship • - 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) 
 • - 
 
 
 
Mr. Chuan  Nimkittikul 
 • 54 years old  
Position • Vice President – Purchasing and Distribution 
Education • Master Degree in Business Administration 
  Bachelor Degree in Economics  
  Thammasat University 
Experience 
1996-1998 • Assistant Vice President – Purchasing  
  and Distribution 
 • Human resource and Administration:  
  C.P. Seven Eleven Plc. 
Relationship • - 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) 
 • - 
 
Mr. Suwit  Kingkaew 
 • 55 years old  
Position • Vice President – General Management  
Education • Master Degree in Business Administration 
  Bachelor Degree in Economics, Kasetsat University 
Experience 
1996-1998 • Assistant Vice President – General Management :  
  C.P. Seven Eleven Plc. 
Relationship • - 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)  
2005 • Director Certification Program (DCP) 
 
 
Mr. Kosa  Pongsupath 
 • 53 years old  
Position • Vice President – Information Technology 
Education • Bachelor Degree in Statistics, Kasetsat University 
Experience 
2000-2001 • Assistant Vice President –Information Technology : 

C.P. Seven Eleven Plc. 
Relationship • - 
Training by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) 
 • - 
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Morning... 
Hurried lives with responsibilities waiting ahead 

The working day begins, the final destination is still far 
7-Eleven is your travel companion 

Waiting to fulfill all your needs 

¬“¡ “¬... 
™’«‘µ∑’Ë‡√àß√’∫°—∫¿“√°‘®∑’Ë√Õ§Õ¬Õ¬Ÿà¢â“ßÀπâ“ 

™’«‘µ°“√∑Ì“ß“π‡√‘Ë¡¢÷Èπ ®ÿ¥À¡“¬ª≈“¬∑“ßÕ’°¬“«‰°≈ 
‡´‡«àπÕ’‡≈ø‡«àπ §◊Õ‡æ◊ËÕπ√à«¡∑“ß 

∑’Ë®–§Õ¬‡µ‘¡‡µÁ¡ „π∑ÿ°Ê  ‘Ëß∑’Ë¢“¥À“¬‰ª 
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OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited, 

formerly C.P. Convenience Store Company Limited, was 

established in 1988 by the Charoen Pokphand Group to 

conduct the convenience store business in Thailand under 

the “7-Eleven” trademark. The Company was granted a license  

to use the trademark from 7-Eleven, Inc., USA. In 1989, the first  

7-Eleven outlet in Thailand was opened on Patpong Road. 

At the end of the year 2004, the Company had a total of 

3,311 7-Eleven stores nationwide, making Thailand the country 

with the fourth largest 7-Eleven network in the world after 

Japan, the USA and Taiwan. Of the total, 1,276 stores are in 

Bangkok (39 percent) and 2,035 stores are in the vicinity and 

provincial areas (61 percent). According to type of store, there 

are 1,931 corporate stores (58 percent), 1,191 franchise stores 

(36 percent) and 189 sub-area license stores (6 percent). 

Presently, an average of 3.4 million customers visit 7-Eleven 

stores each day. 

In 2006, the Company plans to establish another 400-

450 new outlets both as stand-alone stores and stores located 

in PTT gas stations to reach more target customers both in 

Bangkok, the vicinity and provincial areas. At the end of 2005, 

the Company had 2,915 stand-alone stores (88 percent) and 

396 stores in PTT gas stations (12 percent).  

In addition, the Company has continuously invested in 

businesses supporting the convenience store business in 

Thailand. In 1994, the Company invested in Counter Service 

Company Limited (“CS”), a bill payment service business. In 

1996, the Company set up C.P. Retailing and Marketing 

Company Limited (CPRAM) to manufacture and sell frozen food 

and bakery. In 1999, the Company established Retailink 

(Thailand) Company Limited (RTL) to distribute and repair retail 

equipment.  

The Company has also invested in other related 

businesses. In collaboration with its business alliances, the 

Company established Thai Smart Card Company Limited (TSC) 

in 2001 to offer product and service payment through Smart 

Purse electronic cash cards. In 2003, GOSOFT (Thailand) 

Company Limited (GOSOFT) was formed to provide 

information technology services. In the same year, 

MAM Heart Company Limited (MAM) was set up to 

provide marketing consulting services and Dynamic 

Logistics Management Company Limited (DM) was established 

to provide logistics services.  

In 2004, the Company established Suksapiwat Company 

Limited to provide educational services through Panyapiwat 

Techno Business, a retailing vocational school, with the 

objective of supporting the government’s policy to reform 

education, especially vocational education. The Company aims 

to improve the quality and standards of education as well as 

produce graduates to fulfill demand and expansion of the retail 

industry for the country’s future development. 

In 2005, the Company officially opened Panyapiwat 

Techno Business, the country’s first vocational school for retail 

education. In addition, money transfer services through “Love 

Connection” cards and product and service payment through 

Smart Purse digital cash cards were commenced.  

Besides investment in other businesses through 

subsidiaries and affiliates, the Company has also expanded its 

own business operations. In 1988, 7 Catalog Order was 

launched to expand the Company’s distribution channel and 

provide an alternative for customers in purchasing products.  

7 Catalog Order, derived from the mail order concept, has 

transformed from leaflets into catalog magazines. In 2001, Book 

Smile, formerly 7-Today, was introduced as a new distribution 

channel for books and magazines. 

GROUP STRUCTURE OF 
C.P. SEVEN ELEVEN PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED  
As at December 31, 2005 

The Company became a public company limited 

registration number 0107542000011 on March 12, 1999. As at 

December 31, 2005, the Charoen Pokphand Group held 45.09 

percent of the Company’s paid-up capital.  

As at December 31, 2005, the group structure of the 

Company is as follows: 

Nature of Business 
 



√“
¬

ß“
π

ª
√–

®”
ª

ï 2
5

4
8

 ∫
¡

®.
 ´

’.æ
’. ‡

´
‡«

àπ
Õ’‡

≈
ø

‡«
àπ

 

22

‚§√ß √â“ß°“√∂◊ÕÀÿâπ¢Õß°≈ÿà¡ ∫√‘…—∑ ´’.æ’. ‡´‡«àπÕ’‡≈ø‡«àπ ®”°—¥ (¡À“™π) 
Group Structure of C.P. SEVEN ELEVEN PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

99.99% 99.99% 99.99% 99.99% 99.99% 99.99% 99.99% 32.24% 

Emerald 
Innovation 
Management 

Lotus 
Distribution 
Investment 

Yangtze 
Supermarket 
Investment 

Ek Chor 
Distribution 
System 

Shanghai C.P. 
Jing Cheng 
Enterprise 
Development 

Ek Chor  
Trading* 

Ek Chor  
Distribution* 

Shanghai Lotus 
Supermarket Chain Store 

Thailand 

British Virgin Islands 

Hong Kong 

54% 54% 

C.P. Retailing 
& Marketing 

Retailink 
(Thailand) 

Gosoft 
(Thailand) 

MAM 
Heart 

Suksapiwat Dynamic 
Management 

Thai 
Smart Card 

PRC 

*NO longer commencing operation 

1% 100% 1% 

100% 

65% 100% 100% 54% 
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Groups of Business
 2003 2004 2005 

 Million Baht % Million Baht % Million Baht % 

Convenience store (CP7-11) 40,154 68.8 38,184 51.2 50,132 /1 53.1 

Supercenter (SLS) 16,857 28.9 21,418 28.7 28,945  30.7 

Other businesses/2 1,372 2.4 15,020 20.1 15,278  16.2 

Total Net Sales and Service incomes 58,382 100 74,622 100.0 94,355  100.0 

/1 Exclude phone card sales since September 2005 

/2 Consists of CPRAM frozen and bakery business, Goods and bill payment collection service of CS, and sale and repair business for retail equipment of RTL and other income from others 

subsidiaries 

REVENUE STRUCTURE  
The Company’s total revenue is generated from net sales and services income, which can be divided into 3 business groups as 

follows: (For further details, please refer to Financial Status and Operating Results.)  

BUSINESS OBJECTIVES 
The Company aims to be the leader in the convenience 

store business in Thailand that can satisfy the ever-changing 

demands of customers.  The Company will focus on its strength, 

offering “convenience” to customers in purchasing goods and 

services through 7-Eleven outlets that expand across the 

country and most of which are open 24 hours a day.  The 

Company has plans to further open 400-450 new outlets per 

year in 2006 and 2007.  The Company places great importance 

on the location of every 7-Eleven store, making it a superior 

convenience store that provides fully-integrated food and 

beverage services.  Greater emphasis is given to selling food 

and beverages than selling consumer non-food products as 

food and beverages have higher margins.  This also enables 7-

Eleven to differentiate itself from other types of retail stores.  At 

the same time, the Company will use 7-Eleven’s expansive store 

network to offer numerous value-added services to provide 

greater customer convenience such as bill payment services 

through Counter Service and product order through 7-Catalog. 

With regards to the People’s Republic of China, the 

Company aims to the be leader in the superstore business in 2 

cities and 7 administrative areas, namely Shanghai, Chonqing, 

Anhui, Hubei, Hunan, Sichuan, Jiangxi, Jiangsu and Zhejiang, 

which have great potential for growth in the future.  In 2006, the 

Company has plans to open 10-15 new Lotus supercenters 

depending on the competitive environment, the PRC 

government’s business policy and economic and social 

conditions. 
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PRODUCT MIX IN 7-ELEVEN STORES 

The Company continuously attempts to 

search and select products and services that are of 

high quality, are different from those of competitors, 

satisfy the demands of different target groups, and are in line with 

new trends and market changes. Products in 7-Eleven stores are 

categorized into the following major groups: Foods & Beverage 

accounting for 48% and non-food products including technology 

and entertainment accounting for 52%. 

In addition, 7-Eleven stores provide other services for 

customer convenience such as payment service for as many as 

131 services, ATM machines at 1,358 branches, telephones, 

catalog order, and money transfer. The Company continuously 

strives to expand its alliance partners to provide a wider range of 

services. 

MARKET CONDITIONS AND COMPETITIONS 

IN CONVENIENCE STORE BUSINESS 

a. Nature of Customers 

Using demographics, the Company separates its 

customers into 3 groups: Children and teenagers, Working 

people and adults with medium income or lower who prefer 

convenience and trendy products, and Motorists and passengers 

who frequent PTT gas stations. On average, a total of 3.4 million 

customers nationwide per day purchased products and services 

from 7-Eleven stores in 2005, increasing from 2.7 million customers

nationwide per day in 2004. The spending per ticket rose from an 

average of Baht 56 per visit in 2004 to Baht 58 per visit in 2005.  

b. Business Operating Conditions

Every customer group has ever-changing demands. 

Tracking customers’ demands must be done in a quick and timely 

manner. In listening and learning about customers’ demands, the 

latest information technology is needed to communicate 

between the stores and the head office. The Company has 

invested more than Baht 1,000 million in the POS (Point of Sales) 

and SC (Store Controller) systems as a channel for using data to 

learn about customers’ demands. These systems enable the stores 

to stock products that most meet that demands of their customers. 

From consumer surveys and knowledge gained from 

experience, the Company is aware of the major factors 

influencing different customer groups to use convenience store 

services. The Company has used this information to set 

challenges and changes in order to prosper under fierce 

competition with a myriad of retail stores. It has also used the 

information to formulate strategies that are different from those 

of its competitors, responding to the demands of each customer 

group. 

Nature of Business 

CONVENIENCE STORE BUSINESS 
TYPES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Company is the sole operator of 7-Eleven 

convenience stores in Thailand, which has been granted an 

exclusive right from 7-Eleven, Inc., USA to conduct business 

under the Area License Agreement.  

In the past, the Company managed the business as a 

network of stores scattered in communities across the country. In 

2005, the Company expanded the network of 7-Eleven stores to 

all 76 provinces nationwide with a total of 3,311 outlets. The 

outlets covered more districts, from 394 districts in 2004 to 423 

districts in 2005, equivalent to 46 percent of the total 920 districts. 

Forty-eight percent of the 7-Eleven outlets in the 

provinces are located in Muang District, that is, 968 outlets from a 

total of 2,035 outlets in the provinces.

The 7-Eleven stores are categorized into three types  

based on ownership as follows:

(Unit : Stores) 2003 2004 2005 

Corporate Stores 1,608 1,782 1,931 

Franchise Stores 662 923 1,191 

Sub Area License Stores 127 156 189 

Total 2,397 2,861 3,311 

1. Corporate Stores: The stores are wholly-owned and 

managed by the Company. The Company invests in retailing 

equipment, store decoration and inventory. 

2. Franchise Stores: The Company offers an opportunity

for any person including employees to operate their own  

7-Eleven store under a (state-of-the-art) franchise system.  

The Company will offer close assistance in management and 

administration, product assortment and the financial system. The 

Company has regular nationwide promotional and advertising 

campaigns and provides advisory on new management 

techniques in person. A franchisee can either choose a new 

location or an existing store. In case a franchisee has his own 

location, the Company will help with the feasibility study without 

any charges. The term of the franchise agreement and the 

benefits depend on the type of franchise.  

3. Sub Area License Stores: The Company engages in 

sub-area license agreements with third parties to operate  

7-Eleven stores in the territory where the sub-area licensees 

themselves will be responsible for the management of 7-Eleven 

stores. The Company will provide assistance and support under 

the agreed conditions. Presently, there are 4 sub-area license 

agreements in Phuket, Yala, Chiang Mai and Ubon Ratchathani. 
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c. Responding to Customers’ Demands 

Service from Employees

To deliver convenience to customers, the Company has 

developed employee competency in providing services through 

training for staff at all levels, from store employees to store 

managers. The Company has the Tara Park Training Center in 

Bangkok and eight smaller training centers located in different 

regions across the country to provide training to 36,000 people 

annually. A variety of instructional methods are used such as 

classroom training, on-the-job training/coaching, self-learning, 

computer based training and Mobile Unit training. There is also 

job rotation to develop competency to rapidly respond to 

customer changes. Last year, the Friendly Service Project was 

initiated to increase customer satisfaction towards services 

provided by employees. 

Furthermore, the Company developed the Complaint 

Handling system to allow customers to easily send in complaints; 

to respond and solve problems within 24 hours; to decentralize 

authority enabling store employees to contact and solve 

customers’ problems immediately; to check the satisfaction of 

customers who issued complaints to ensure that their problems 

have been solved; and to analyze customer complaints to find 

the causes and preventive measures. 

Development and Assortment of Products and Services

Different demands of various customer groups have led 

to the selection and development of products and services to 

satisfy each customer group. The process starts with recognizing 

customers’ needs, creating a product concept, developing the 

taste, and testing in model stores to receive feedback from the 

target group and to confirm successful store management in 

order to solve management problems before actual 

implementation at every branch. Each year, the Company selects 

more than 3,500 revolving items to ensure that the products and 

services meet customers’ requirements. Product development is 

undertaken in cooperation with Team Merchandising to obtain 

unique quality products, especially FBO products (First sold in 7-

Eleven stores, Best Selection, Only sold in 7-Eleven stores).

Improvement of Store Environment

The Company has improved both the internal and 

external store environment to create a pleasant environment for 

surrounding communities. The store layout and equipment are 

arranged to enable customers to easily locate products, to 

facilitate employees’ work, and to provide light and safety. 

Importance is also given to energy saving, hygiene and 

cleanliness, and prevention of waste water from polluting 

communities. As a result, 7-Eleven stores, which implement the 

Quality Standard Inspection (QSI) system, do not experience any 

problems from communities where they are located.  

Product Quality Guarantee

The Company has developed a supply chain 

management system to improve product quality from 

manufacturing, logistics, to store management in order to deliver 

premium-quality and fresh products to customers and to prepare 

for future expansion into the food business. The Company selects 

and monitors manufacturers with acceptable standards and 

provides knowledge on improving manufacturing quality 

standards. Moreover, the Company trains store employees on 

quality management of products especially those in the food 

category. Experts from government organizations such as the 

Food and Drug Administration are invited to give lectures on 

food safety to the Company’s employees. The Company has also 

put in place a system to guarantee quality through random 

inspection of foods and beverages. In the past year, the Company 

embarked on a project to provide assistance to suppliers to attain 

GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) certification, increasing 

capability to develop food products with suppliers. In 2005, fifty 

7-Eleven stores participated in the Ministry of Public Health’s 

“Clean Food Good Taste Project” and 488 stores participated in 

the “Bangkok Clean and Safe City Project” of the Bangkok 

Metropolitan Administration. 

Creating Value for Customers

The Company strives to develop different management 

processes, building connectivity with customers at the center, to 

create and deliver value, confidence and favorable impressions to 

customers. The Company is dedicated to providing convenience; 

good, fast and time-saving services; new and fresh quality 

products; and a pleasant environment. The Company is also 

dedicated to implementing activities that create value for 

customers such as money stamps and lucky draws and social 

activities for communities. 

The multitude of things that the Company has developed 

and created value for customers is reflected in the Customer 

Satisfaction Index towards the Company that has risen in the past 

five years. At the same time, the Company has used customer 

comments for improvement, to develop products and services to 

better meet customers’ demands, and to set strategies to keep 

existing customers and win new customers in the future. 
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continued outlet expansion in communities to serve consumers 

who increasingly demand convenience and speed. Government 

policy to support investment in public utilities and expansion of 

development into communities is another factor supporting 

small-scale retail store expansion into communities. At the same 

time, operators are trying to find ways to foster good customer 

relationships and respond to customers’ demands in order to 

create good impressions and greater customer loyalty. Operators 

have selected products and services to suit each community’s 

demands and have formed business alliances in order to create 

value and differentiate themselves. 

Delivery of Products and Services 

The Company strives to continuously develop its value 

chain to deliver the best to customers. In the area of product 

distribution which is an important part of the value chain, the 

Company has continuously made developments. The Company 

has expanded the number of distribution centers in strategic 

areas in order to accommodate new store expansion and 

distribute products efficiently and effectively. In addition, the 

Company has introduced new equipment and tools such as the 

Digital Picking system to assist with product arrangement, 

making it more accurate and faster. 

Presently, the Company has distribution centers in 

Bangkok and the provinces. There are distribution centers for 

both general products and products requiring controlled 

temperature. Strict quality control at every single process, on-

time delivery and increased delivery frequency ensures complete, 

correct and timely delivery of products to stores and product 

quality is maintained until reaching customers. 

Last year, the Company opened a new distribution center 

in Latkrabang to support branch expansion and increase product 

delivery efficiency and speed. In addition, the Company 

embarked on the GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) project at 

distribution centers to ensure the quality and safety of products 

delivered to customers.

Large-scale Retail Business “Supercenter” 
Nature of Business 

Realizing the market potential of the PRC with both 

economic and purchasing power growth, the Company 

expanded investment into the country since 1997. The Company 

operates a large-scale retail business, “Lotus Supercenter”, by 

effectively investing 29.7 percent in Shanghai Lotus Supermarket 

Chain Store Co., Ltd. (“SLS”) through its affiliate, Yangtze 

Supermarket Investment Limited.  

At the end of 2005, SLS operates altogether 40 Lotus 

Supercenters through branch expansion in Shanghai and other 

cities in the Yangtze Basin. 

d. Market Conditions and Competition in the   

Convenience Store Business 

In 2005, modern retailing under the chain store format 

experienced intense competition in the forms of both outlet 

expansion and various marketing tactics employed to attract 

consumers. Competition intensified following the rise in the cost 

of living from higher oil and product prices which resulted in 

consumers becoming more careful in purchasing products and 

giving more consideration to value for money. However, the retail 

industry value in the tax system is expected to grow 13 percent 

or Baht 2.2 trillion in terms of value. 

Higher oil prices have affected consumers’ consumption 

behavior and pattern, causing consumers to reduce purchasing 

frequency, buy more in one time, and buy from retail outlets near 

home or the office. Besides the aforementioned factor, increasing

difficulty in finding good locations and the density of retail stores 

in big cities have caused large-scale retail stores to change their 

business concept and focus more on small-scale retail stores. 

Consequently, the convenience store business has become an 

interesting segment for investment by both current retailers and 

retailers from other segments. Convenience store expansion has 

been accomplished through both corporate stores and franchise 

stores. In 2005, there was an increase of more than 800 retail 

stores under the chain store format with the expansion of 7-

Eleven outlets accounting for 450 of the total.

Type of stores 2003 2004  2005 

Stand alone convenience stores 3,146 4,008 4,788 

 - 7-Eleven Stores  2,195 2,564 2,915 

  - Others 989 1,478 1,910 

Convenience stores in gas station 1,411 1,542 1,664 

  - 7-Eleven Stores  202 297 396 

  - Others 1,171 1,211 1,231

Remark : Retail outlets in chain store format  
Source : Compilation by C.P. Seven Eleven Plc.

7-Eleven stores are in the small-scale retail store segment. 

In terms of market segmentation, the Company uses the 

geographic concept to divide the market into Bangkok, vicinity 

and provincial areas. Moreover, the Company has expanded its 

target customers to motorists and passengers who use PTT gas 

station services.  

The Company’s direct competitors are modern small-

scale retail stores, both existing retail stores and retail stores under 

the chain store format, while its indirect competitors are fast food 

stores, coffee shops or stores that provide an alternative for 

customers.  

Despite fierce competition among small-scale retail stores 

to expand the number of branches, there is still opportunity for 
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Market conditions and competition of 

large scale retail business 

(a) Nature of Customers 

Lotus Supercenter’s target customers are people with 

medium to low income who prefer one-stop shopping. At 

present, approximately 8,700 customers per day are recorded at 

each branch. 

(b) Pricing Policy 

Lotus Supercenter uses the Every Day Low Price (“ELDP”) 

pricing policy as its selling point to attract customers. It focuses 

on offering everyday low prices rather than offering promotions 

from time to time. It also offers good-quality and low-priced 

housebrand products under the “Lotus Supercenter” brand.  

(c) Market Conditions and Competition in the retail   

 business in the PRC 

The retailing business in the PRC continues to expand in 

line with economic and consumption growth. The government’s 

policy to open up trade since December 2004 has attracted 

continuous investment in the PRC, resulting in continued growth 

of the retailing sector of more than 10 percent. 

Year 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005-p 2006-f  

Gross domestic product (%) 9.7 8.1 9.1 10.0 10.1 9.5 8.3-9.3 

Retail value growth (%) 8.4 10.1 11.8 9.1 13.3 12.8 13.0 

Source: State Information Center, SIC National Bureau of Statistic of China 

District No. of Stores 

Shanghai 19 

Jiangsu 10 

Zhejiang 4 

Hubei* 3 

Sichuan 2 

Anhui 1 

Chengdu 1 

Total 40 

* SLS has managed 2 branches in Wuhan (Hubei District) since July 2004. 

Lotus Supercenters are open everyday from 8.00 hrs. to 

22.00 hrs. For the past three years, the sales volume of Lotus 

Supercenters according to the consolidated financial statement 

has increased continuously, from Baht 21,418 million in 2004 to 

Baht 28,945 million in 2005, expanding 35 percent. This growth 

rate was higher than the PRC’s total retail growth which was 

approximately 13 percent.  

Product Mix 

Lotus Supercenter tries to select a wide variety of 

products and constantly changes the products to cater to the 

demands of its target customers. In 2005, the products were 

divided into 4 main categories as follows: 

• Fresh Food accounts for approximately 20.5 percent of  

 total sales. 

• Dry Groceries accounts for approximately 46.2 percent of  

 total sales 

• Hard Lines accounts for approximately 20.8 percent of  

 total sales 

• Apparel accounts for approximately 12.5 percent of total sales 
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Economic growth and retail sector expansion, especially 

expansion of foreign investment, are important factors driving 

the growth of the middle class in urban areas, enhancing 

purchasing volume, income and purchasing power. At the same 

time, the lifestyle and consumer behavior of city dwellers have 

changed towards a more modern lifestyle.  

Changes in consumer behavior can be seen from an 

increasing number of consumers shopping at modern retail 

outlets. The 2005 survey results of a leading research company 

show that the modern retail sector in the PRC expanded from 42 

percent of total retail sales in 2002 to 50 percent of total retail 

sales in 2004, while the traditional grocery sector shrank. 

Breakdown of retail industry (%) 2002 2003 2004 

Modern Trade 42 46 50 

Traditional Grocery 53 49 47 

Specialty Store 5 5 3

Source: Compilation by C.P. Seven Eleven Plc.  

In the modern retail sector, hypermarkets or supercenters 

recorded higher growth rates compared to other types of retail 

businesses. The market share of hypermarkets increased from 19 

percent in 2000 to 38 percent in 2005, while the market share of 

other types of retail businesses declined. Hypermarkets are 

expected to grow continuously at approximately 25-30 percent 

per year until the year 2010. Supporting factors include the 

country’s economic conditions, income, purchasing power, and 

retail sector which expanded an average of 11.4 percent per year 

during 2000-2005. Retail sector growth is estimated at 13 percent 

in 2006. 

Industry Outlook and Competition in 2006 
The PRC retail sector is estimated to expand 13 percent in 

2006, mainly from the middle class in urban areas who have 

increased purchasing volume, income and purchasing power as 

well as a more modern lifestyle. Furthermore, the PRC’s 11th

Economic Development Policy (2006-2010) which focuses on 

stimulating domestic consumption and lifting urban and rural 

income will be another supporting key. It will bring changes in 

income, purchasing power and consumer behavior and boost 

consumption.  

Continued consumption growth has attracted continuous

investment in the retail business in the PRC from both foreign 

and local operators. Large operators that are direct and indirect 

competitors of Lotus Supercenter include Trust-mart, Carrefour, 

Walmart, Rt-mart and Shanghai Bailian.  

Cities in the PRC with top-ranking per capita income  

and total retail value comprise Shanghai, Beijing, Zhejiang, Tianjin 

and Jiangsu. These cities are targets for local and foreign 

operators, including Lotus Supercenter, to expand investment  

in the retail business. In 2006, Lotus Supercenter plans to 

establish 10-15 new branches.  

Delivery of Products and Services 
Most of the products sold in Lotus Supercenter, 

approximately 99 percent, are products that SLS bought from 

local manufacturers or distributors in the PRC. The head office in 

Shanghai sets the policy on product procurement and 

distribution to each branch. Approximately 63 percent of the 

products are distributed by SLS distribution center. In addition,  

a leading consulting company has been selected to provide 

advice on improving management efficiency.  
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Afternoon... The sun’s rays are blazing 
Exhausted from work 

7-Eleven, a dear friend,  
Is ready bring you smiles and joy 

With warmth, like a true, understanding friend 

¬“¡∫à“¬...¥«ßµ–«—π “¥· ß®â“ 
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Risk Factors 

1. Risk from 7-eleven trademark termination 
 The Company operates its convenience store business 

under the Area License Agreement entered with 7-Eleven, Inc., USA 

since November 7, 1988. Under the terms, the Company is granted 

a license to operate convenience stores in Thailand under the “7-

Eleven” trademark including related trademarks and to obtain 

training and technical assistance in convenience store business 

from 7-Eleven, Inc. On August 20, 2003, 7- Eleven, Inc. entered into 

the Consent Agreement which is an agreement among the 

Company, the Charoen Pokphand Group (“CPG”) and 7- Eleven, Inc. 

under which 7-Eleven, Inc. has agreed to give consent to the public 

offering of shares and the listing of shares for trading on the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand. 

The Area License Agreement does not specify the term of 

the Agreement. However, both parties have the right to terminate 

the Agreement if any event stipulated in the conditions does occur 

or if there is any event which constitutes a cause for termination 

under the Consent Agreement and also results in termination of 

the Area License Agreement. In case the Area License Agreement is 

terminated, the Company will lose its right to use the trademark, 

which will significantly affect the Company’s business. In such case, 

the Company might also be required to pay damages to 7- Eleven, 

Inc. In addition, if the relationship between the Company or CPG 

and 7- Eleven, Inc. turns sour, the Company may not obtain 

appropriate assistance from 7- Eleven, Inc.  

The Company’s Risk Management 

With 17 years of good business relationship, the 

Company has never had any critical conflict with 7-Eleven, Inc. 

Furthermore, the Company has followed the regulations as per 

the agreement since signed date. The Company believes that 

the relationship of itself and CPG with 7- Eleven, Inc. remains 

good and that its business operation under the “7- Eleven” 

trademark is of mutual interest. So far, the business relationship 

and assistance have been satisfactory. The chance that such 

relationship will turn sour is unlikely. At present, there is no 

reason to believe that there would be any event that may 

negatively affect the relationship of the Company and CPG with 

7-Eleven, Inc.  

 

2. Risk from distribution center Error or 
Problem 

Most of the products in 7- Eleven outlets are delivered 

via the Company’s distribution center. The distribution center 

plays a vital role in 7- Eleven’s business. Damages to the 

distribution center due to natural disasters, communication 

system and information technology failure, or any force majeure 

will have an adverse impact on the supply of products to 7-

Eleven outlets and may negatively affect the Company’s 

operating performance. 

The Company’s risk management 

The Company has prepared measures to protect against 

various risks and has formulated an appropriate back-up plan 

should there be any damages to the distribution center. 

Furthermore, the Company has already set up a new main 

distribution center in Bangkok and plan to establish additional 

sub-distribution centers in the provinces. The Company has also 

taken out insurance against damages which may be caused by 

such risks as deemed appropriate. However, there are still risks 

which various plans and insurance may not completely prevent 

and compensate. Besides, the Company still has to depend on 

manufacturers and suppliers to deliver their products to the 

distribution centers and branches. Delivery errors of both 

manufacturers and suppliers may also negatively affect the 

Company’s sales volume. 
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3. Risk from information technology mistake  
 or problem

The Company has invested in various information 

technology systems such as the store management system and 

the distribution center management system. Information 

technology has played a major role in assisting the Company to 

achieve higher efficiency in dealing with inventory, purchasing, 

and data storage and analysis. Therefore, an error or problem in 

the information technology systems will affect the Company’s 

ability to manage the 7-Eleven outlets on a normal basis and 

may negatively affect the Company’s operating performance. 

The Company’s risk management 

The Company realizes the importance of information 

technology at both the store and head office level and has 

established a prevention and back-up system that meets 

generally-accepted standards. The Company has set up its 

second computer center in the Chaengwattana area to diversify 

and reduce risks. However, the Company cannot fully guarantee 

that this will absolutely prevent any damages that may occur. 

4. Risk from foreign investment 
The Company’s affiliate, Shanghai Lotus Supermarket 

Chain Store Co., Ltd. (“SLS”), operates a supercenter business in 

the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). There may be risks from 

changes in the political, legal or economic conditions in the 

PRC which may affect the revenues of this business.  

Under the agreement made with the World Trade 

Organization (“WTO”), the PRC government revised laws and 

regulations to accommodate business expansion in the 

country. With regards to the retail business, since December 11, 

2004, the PRC government has lifted the foreign ownership 

limit by allowing foreign investors to own more than 50 percent 

shareholding, compared to not over 49 percent in the past. This 

may result in an increase in the percentage of shareholding in 

SLS by the Company.

The Company’s risk management 

The Company has set a policy and system to monitor and 

control its overseas business as well as has sent management 

representatives to supervise operations in the PRC. In addition, 

regular meetings are held at least once every quarter to update 

and discuss operating performance and management strategies to 

ensure continued efficiency.  

5.  Risk from changing legal regulation which  
might hold back foreign business expansion  

The Charoen Pokphand Group has direct and indirect 

control over the Company. In the Consent Agreement with  

7-Eleven, Inc., CPG agrees to maintain its minimum shareholding

ratio as well as its power to appoint and control the majority of 

the Company’s directors. As at June 2005, companies in the 

Charoen Pokphand Group continue to hold an aggregate 45.09 

percent stake. Therefore, the Charoen Pokphand Group will be 

able to appoint the majority of the directors and remain 

influential to the management and administration of the 

Company, including consideration of or support for matters 

that require approval from the Company’s shareholders.  

At present, there is no agreement between the 

Company and the Charoen Pokphand Group and its affiliates 

that will prohibit the Charoen Pokphand Group to expand 

businesses or invest in other retail operations. Therefore, there 

may be a risk that the Charoen Pokphand Group will not 

consider granting opportunities and resources that will be of 

best interest to the Company and its shareholders.

The Company’s risk management 

The Company has independent directors and the Audit 

Committee to assure that business policies and directions will be 

considered for the best interests of all shareholders. In addition, the 

Company has formulated a policy and regulations concerning 

connected transactions and has published a guideline for good 

corporate governance so that all stakeholders benefit equitably.

6. Risk from controlling influence of the    
 Charoen Pokphand Group 

When the Company made an investment in the retail 

business in the PRC, the Company entered into a shareholders 

agreement (Deed of Shareholders Agreement) dated February 

18, 2000 with Lotus Distribution Investment (“LDI”), Yangtze 

Supermarket Investment (“YSI”) and China Retail Fund (“CRF”), 

which provides that CRF has the right to sell back the shares of 

YSI to LDI and/or the Company (“Put Option”) when any of the 

following events occur:  
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(a) The shares of YSI or the shares of the company held by 

YSI, a company established for the purpose of listing, 

cannot be listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange or 

any other stock exchange acceptable to the Company, 

CRF and LDI within 5 years from the date the Company, 

CRF and LDI paid the price of the shares (Closing Date*), 

or within six years from the Closing Date if the Company 

and CRF agree to such (Listing Deadline);  

(b) The net profit after tax of YSI does not reach US$ 25.73 

million in the accounting year that is the fourth 

anniversary from the Closing Date and US$ 35.42 million 

in the accounting year that is the fifth anniversary from 

the Closing Date; or  

(c) The Company, LDI or a company concerned with LDI or 

the Company does not comply with the representations 

in the Deed of Shareholders Agreement.  
*Note: Closing Date is March 27, 2000

The Company’s risk management 

Even though CRF has the right to sell back the shares as 

specified in agreement, the Company believes that the 

relationship since the Deed of Shareholders Agreement was 

signed remains good.  So far, there has been no major 

controversy with CRF.  The Company has followed regulations as 

per specified in the agreement.  Moreover, the Company has 

continually consulted with CRF on performance improvement 

methods for SLS.  The Company believes that the supercenter 

business in the PRC has good growth potential and will provide 

future mutual benefits.
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Shareholding Structure and Management 

SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY  
As at 31 December 2005, the Company’s registered capital was at Baht 4,500,000,000, of which Baht 4,423,538,610 has been paid 

up. The paid-up capital comprises 4,423,538,610 ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 1 per share. The remaining 76,461,390 ordinary 

shares with a par value of Baht 1 per share have been reserved to support the exercise of rights to purchase ordinary shares pursuant to 

the warrants under the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP).  

 
SHAREHOLDERS  

  Major Shareholders As at June 9, 2005 
 No. of shares % 

 1. Charoen Pokphand Group Co., Ltd.* 1,059,715,000 24.02 
 2. C.P. Merchandising Co., Ltd.* 789,826,000 17.90 
 3. American International Assurance Company, Limited-Di-Life** 300,000,000 6.80 
 4. State Street Bank and Trust Company 231,361,690 5.24 
 5. Nortrust Nominees Ltd. 203,853,100 4.62 
 6. Bangkok Produce Merchandising Plc.* 140,000,000 3.17 
 7. Albouys Nominees Ltd 135,181,000 3.06 
 8. American International Assurance Co., Ltd.** 100,000,000 2.27 
 9. UNS Agro-Chemical Co., Ltd. 90,000,000 2.04 
 10. Thai NDVR Company Limited 73,977,890 1.68 
 11. Others 1,287,526,280 29.20 
  Total 4,411,440,960 100.00 
 
* Denotes companies in the Charoen Pokphand Group which hold a combined shareholding of 45.09 percent of the total paid-up capital  
** Denotes shareholders in the same group which hold a combined shareholding of 9.07 percent of the total paid-up capital  

DIVIDEND POLICY  
The Company’s Board of Directors has a policy to propose a dividend payment to shareholders at approximately 50 percent of 

net profit generated from operations after income tax deduction and statutory reserves at the annual general shareholders’ meeting for 

their consideration. However, the policy will be subject to change should the Board consider the financial standing, economic situation, 

operating performance and future projects and find that it is appropriate to propose the shareholders otherwise.  

With respect to subsidiaries, the Board of Directors of subsidiaries have policies to distribute dividends in accordance with the 

operating performance of the relevant companies without determining a certain rate of dividend payment. The distribution of dividends 

will be based on future investment plans of each subsidiary. 

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE 
The Company’s management structure consists of (a) the Board of Directors (b) the Audit Committee (c) the Chief Executive 

Officer and (d) the Executive Committee, with scope of authority and duties as follows: 

(a) Board of Directors 

1. Lieut. Suchai Jaovisidha Director/Independent Director  (Resigned on Nov 12,05) 
 Mr. Komain Bhatarabhirom Director / Independent Director (Effective since Dec 28,05) 
2. Mr. Pridi Boonyoung Director / Independent Director 
3. Mr. Padoong Techasarintr Director / Independent Director 
4. Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Chairman 
5. Mr. Korsak Chairasmisak* Vice Chairman 
6. Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont** Director 
7. Ms. Rachel Y. Chiang** Director 
8. Mr. Athueck Asvanund Director (Resigned on Aug 11, 2005) 
 Mr. Adirek  Sripratak** Director (Effective on Aug 11, 2005) 
9. Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong** Director 
10. Mr. Narong Chearavanont** Director 
11. Mr. Prasert Jarupanich** Director 
12. Mr. Pittaya Jearavisitkul* Director 
13. Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul* Director 

Note:   Certification documents of the Company stipulate that binding signatures must include 2 directors – consisting of any authorized director marked * and any authorized director marked **. Both directors must 
sign and affix the Company’s seal.  

‚§√ß √â“ß°“√∂◊ÕÀÿâπ·≈–°“√®—¥°“√ 
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Scope of Authority and Duties of the Board of Directors  

The Board of Directors is responsible for carrying out the Company’s business in compliance with the laws, the objectives, the 

Articles of Association of the Company, and the resolutions of shareholders’ meetings. The Board of Directors may appoint one or more 

directors or other persons to carry out any act on behalf of the Board.  

Appointment and Removal of Members of the Board  

The general shareholders’ meeting elects the directors by a majority of votes in accordance with set rules and procedures. Every 

shareholder entitled to vote shall have the equivalent of one vote for each share held. Each shareholder may give all votes to one or 

several candidate(s), but may not divide unequally his votes. The appointment of a successor to fill up a vacancy other than by rotation 

shall be made through a resolution of the Board of Directors by a vote not less than three-fourths of the number of remaining directors.  

The Board of Directors of the Company shall be removed by a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting by a vote not less than 

three-fourths of the number of shareholders attending the meeting who have voting rights and shares totaling not less than half of the 

number of shares held by shareholders attending the meeting and having the right to vote.  

(b) Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors and consists of 3 independent directors as follows:  
1. Mr. Komain Bhatarabhirom Chaiman of the Audit Committee 
2. Mr. Pridi Boonyoung Member of the Audit Committee 
3. Mr. Padoong Techasarintr Member of the Audit Committee  
 
Note: Mr. Kidsada Euapiyachart is the Secretary of the Audit Committee.  

The Audit Committee reports directly to the Board of Directors and is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors in 

preparing and auditing the Company’s financial results; reviewing internal control and internal audit systems; reviewing and ensuring 

compliance with the laws on securities and exchange and other laws related to the Company’s business; considering, selecting and 

proposing the appointment and remuneration of the Company’s auditor; considering the disclosure of corporate data in case there is 

any related transaction or item that may lead to possible conflicts of interest; and performing other duties as appointed by the Board of 

Directors. 

(c) Chief Executive Officer  

The Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Korsak Chairasmisak, was appointed by the Board of Directors and is responsible for the overall 

operation and management of the Company’s activities. He has authority in routine management of the Company except authority in 

approving the following 13 matters: 

(1)  The sale or transfer of all or partial portions of the Company’s business to other persons  

(2)  The purchase or takeover or transfer of business from other companies or private companies  

(3)  The execution, amendment and termination of agreements concerning the leasing out of all or substantial parts of the Company’s 

business, the delegation of authority to other persons to manage the business of the Company or consolidation with other persons 

for the purpose of sharing of profit and loss  

(4) The amendment of the Memorandum or Articles of Association of the Company  

(5)  The increment or decrement of capital, the issuance of debentures, the consolidation or dissolution of the Company  

(6) The approval of balance sheets or income statement  

(7)  The appropriation of profits and payment of dividends  

(8)  The borrowing of money or the guaranteeing of loans or creation of obligations to the Company with financial institutions or 

other companies in the amount exceeding Baht 200 million per time in a year  

(9)  The lending of money to other companies in the amount exceeding Baht 200 million per time in a year  

(10) The investment, joint-venture, increment of capital in subsidiaries, affiliates or other companies in the amount exceeding Baht 

200 million per time in a year   

(11) The expenses for investment in large projects or the acquisition of assets of the Company where the cost of such a project or 

the value of assets exceeds Baht 200 million per time in a year  

(12) The sale or disposal of fixed assets of the Company at a sale and disposal price exceeding Baht 200 million per time in a year  

(13) The operation plan and annual budget of the Company  
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The Chief Executive Officer may sub-delegate any executive officer and/or employee of the Company to approve one or several 

matters as the Chief Executive Officer considers appropriate, provided that the power so sub-delegated may not be sub-delegated any 

further. With respect to the foregoing approval, the Chief Executive Officer or person delegated by him shall not be able to approve any 

transaction in which he or any person who may have a conflict of interest would have an interest or might have any other conflict of 

interest with the Company or its subsidiaries, unless such approval is in accordance with the policy and criteria approved by the Board 

of Directors.  

(d) Executive Committee  

As at 31 December 2005, the Company’s Executive Committee consists of the following persons: 
1. Mr. Korsak  Chairasmisak Chief Executive Officer 
2. Mr. Pittaya Jearavisitkul Deputy Chief Executive Officer 
3. Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Managing Director 
4. Mr. Suraphan Pussadej Vice President, Human Resource  
5. Mr. Kamol Sakdejayont* Vice President, Finance and Accounting  
6. Mr. Chuan Nimkittikul Vice President, Purchasing and Distribution 
7. Mr. Dhanin Bhuranamanit Vice President, Operation and Marketing 
8. Mr. Suwit Kingkaew Vice President, General Management 
9. Mr. Kosa Pongsupath Vice President, Information Technology   
* Passed away on February 1, 2006 

Selection of Directors and Executives 
Though the Company has not appointed a Nomination Committee to select and propose nominees to be appointed as 

directors, if there is a vacancy in the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors shall select and propose nominees to fill the vacant 

position. In the selection of candidates, various criteria are considered such as knowledge, capabilities and business-related experience. 

In addition, the candidate must have required qualifications and must not have characteristics which are prohibited under the Public 

Limited Company Act, the Notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission and other related laws.  

Remuneration for Directors and Executives  
(a) Cash Remuneration  
 2005 Type of Remuneration Total (Million Baht) 
Directors 
 Chairman of the Audit Committee Remuneration for Directors 1.20
  Independent Director 
 Audit Committee and Independent Director (2 persons) Remuneration for Directors 1.92
 Chairman Remuneration for Directors 1.20
 Vice Chairman Remuneration for Directors 0.96
 Executive Directors (2 persons) Remuneration for Directors 0.96
 Non-executive Directors (6 persons) Remuneration for Directors 2.88
Total 13 directors  9.12 
Executives Directors and Executive Officers (9 persons) Salary and bonus 98.97 
Total remuneration for Directors and Executives  108.09 

(b) Other Remuneration  

In 2005, the directors and executives of the Company and its subsidiaries exercised rights to purchase the Company’s ordinary 

shares pursuant to the warrants under the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) Program. The first exercise was on 15 March 2005. A total 

of 1,144,146 units were exercised at a price of Baht 42, worth a total of Baht 48.05 million. The second exercise was on 15 September 

2005. A total of 12,097,820 units were exercised at a price of Baht 4.20, worth a total of Baht 50.81 million.  

Under the ESOP Program, the warrants have a maturity of 5 years with the last exercise date on 15 September 2008. The exercise 

price is equal to the initial public offering (IPO) price and the price after the rights are adjusted according to the conditions of the 

distribution of stock dividends and changes in the par value of the ordinary shares.  
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Auditor’s Remuneration  
1. Audit Fee 

In the fiscal year ended 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries paid the following audit fees to  

• The Company’s auditors in the amount of Baht 3.80 million  

• In the fiscal year ended 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries paid the following audit fees to Pricewaterhouse Coopers 

Zhong Tian in the People’s Republic of China in the amount of Baht 7.34 million.  

2. Non-audit Service Fee 

- None –  

PERSONNEL 
2005 Convenience Store Supercenter 

  Business Business 
Store employees (persons) 14,658 3,342 
Head office staffs (persons) 4,500 1,482 
Total (persons) 19,158 4,824 
Total Remunerations (Million Baht) 3,740 2,001

Internal Control  
The Company realizes the importance of implementing an internal control system to provide the Company with an  

operating system that is correct and transparent, can be monitored, and can prevent possible damages to the Company.  The Company 

continuously develops its internal control system to enhance effectiveness and efficiency.  The Internal Audit Department,  

which is independent from the management, reviews all operating functions and information systems of various departments  

of the Company and its subsidiaries, ensuring that all employees adhere to the Company’s internal controls.  The Internal Audit 

Department reports to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors for consideration and improvement of the internal control 

system.  In 2005, there was no material deficiency which had an impact on the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries.  
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The Company truly believes that operation of the 

Company’s business according to the principles of good 

corporate governance will benefit the Company in the long run 

as well as promote the management team’s transparency and 

efficiency. The Company is committed to conducting its 

business under the principles of good corporate governance 

and being a socially-responsible citizen for the best interests of 

all stakeholders and society at large. 

 

1. GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY  
The Company has instituted a Good Corporate 

Governance Policy in line with the principles of good corporate 

governance advocated by the Stock Exchange of Thailand. This 

policy, which is clearly stated in the Employee Handbook and 

can be found on the Company’s website, covers five important 

principles, namely  

 • Structure, duties, responsibilities and independence   

 of the Board of Directors 

 • Rights and equitable treatment of shareholders and   

 stakeholders 

 • Information disclosure and transparency 

 • Internal control and risk management  

 • Business ethics  

The Company has appointed the Corporate Governance 

Committee with the duties and responsibilities of overseeing that 

management and employees comply with the Good Corporate 

Governance Policy, the Code of Business Ethics and the 

Company’s regulations; considering complaints and providing 

justice to concerned parties; and determining penalties and 

punishment. The Corporate Governance Committee has 

appointed a Complaints Committee to receive, consider and 

verify complaints before proposal to the Corporate Governance 

Committee for fair hearing and judgment.  

 

2. SHAREHOLDERS :  
 RIGHTS AND EQUITABLE TREATMENT  

The Company holds shareholders’ meetings at its head 

office and sends invitation letters for the shareholders’ meeting 

approximately 16 days in advance of the meeting date. Each 

meeting agenda clearly states whether an agenda item is for 

acknowledgment or approval, the facts and reasons, the Board’s 

opinion, the number of votes needed for the resolution, and the 

voting rules and procedures. Shareholders are provided with a 

detailed agenda and sufficient documents relating to agenda 

items in both Thai and English to assist voting on presented 

matters.  

In addition, the Company facilitates shareholders’ 

attendance by arranging an easily accessible venue that can 

sufficiently accommodate shareholders. To protect 

shareholders’ rights to attend the meeting, the meeting 

invitation clearly specifies that shareholders bring all required 

documents on the meeting date. For shareholders who are 

unable to attend the meeting, the Company provides a proxy 

form and clearly specifies the necessary supporting documents. 

At every shareholders’ meeting, the Company names at least 

one independent director who may be appointed as a proxy to 

vote on behalf of shareholders who are unable to attend. 

According to the law and the Company’s Articles of 

Association, a shareholder of the Company’s ordinary shares has 

one vote for each share of which he/she is the holder. The 

Company has a clearly stated dividend policy and the amount 

of dividend payment will be reported to the shareholders. The 

Company’s shareholding structure is straightforward, as there is 

no sophisticated cross-holding. The directors hold shares in an 

aggregate amount of 0.25 percent, which accounts for a non-

material proportion. 

Furthermore, the Company places great importance on 

information disclosure to shareholders that is correct, complete 

and transparent. The Company regularly and fairly disseminates 

information via the media, analysts and the websites of the 

Company and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.  

 

3. RIGHTS OF VARIOUS GROUPS  
 OF STAKEHOLDERS  

The Company is fully aware of the rights of various 

groups of stakeholders and has a clearly formulated policy to 

ensure that stakeholders’ rights are well protected, all 

stakeholders receive benefits equitably, and there is no unfair 

treatment to anybody in order to foster continued good 

relationships with shareholders, customers, employees, business 

partners, creditors and competitors. The Company also realizes 

the importance of being responsible to society and 

communities and has taken on as its mission to create projects 

and activities that are beneficial to the development of society 

and communities. 

Shareholders : The Company strives to represent the 

best interests of shareholders by operating a business that 

focuses on sustained long-term growth with continued good 

returns, has competitive advantage with consideration for 

present and future risks, and is transparent and trustworthy. 

Customers : The Company is determined to 

continuously search for products and services that meet 

customers’ demands in order to create customer satisfaction 

Good Corporate Governance Principles 
 

Compliance with  
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and build loyalty; improve product and service quality; lift store 

standards; and select locations easily accessible to customers 

nationwide. There are several channels for customer 

communication and feedback such as via store branches, post, 

the Company’s website and call center.  

Employees : The Company’s employees are a valuable 

resource and are key to the Company’s success. The Company 

has recruited and hired capable and experienced personnel. 

Focusing on the quality of employees, the Company has set 5 

core competencies and has provided continuous in-house and 

outside training for employees at all levels, including specialized 

profession-related training and new business courses, to 

support the Company’s future expansion. Moreover, the 

Company supports numerous employee activities. 

In the area of employee welfare, the Company focuses 

on the quality of working conditions and treats all employees 

equitably. An employee satisfaction survey is regularly 

conducted by research experts. Based on the survey, benefits 

have been set to meet the diversified demands of employees 

such as housing, employee loans, health insurance, 

transportation, social security, provident fund, education fund 

for employees and their children, and the Employee Stock 

Option Plan. The Company also places importance on 

employee safety. Fire drills and activities relating to safety and 7 

SOR are regularly organized and a security system has been put 

in place. 

Business Partners : Business operations with its 

partners should not damage the Company’s reputation nor be 

in conflict with any laws, ethics, culture or traditions. The 

Company values fairness and common interest shared with its 

business partners. Procurement activities are carried out in a 

transparent and straightforward manner. The Company 

recognizes that business partners are essential to creating a 

viable value chain for its customers, ensuring customers receive 

fairly priced, quality products and services.  

Society and Environment : For over ten years, the 

Company has continuously supported communities and 

society through various projects such as the Bilateral Education 

Project, the Reading Promotion Project, the Buddhism Teaching 

Development Project, the GO Game Project, the Fire Prevention 

Project, the Arts and Culture Books Publishing Project, the 7 

Book Awards Project, the Literature Seeds Project and the Bring 

Temple to Seven Project. The Company has also initiated public 

projects to develop and serve society such as the Water 

Conservation Project, the Selling Electricity-saving Light Bulbs 

Project and the Electricity Saving Project.  

On the environmental side, the Company has 

established the Hygiene and Environment Department to install 

oil separation sumps at every branch according to local 

municipal standards to prevent polluting communities with 

contaminated water. The Company has participated in the Store 

Quality Improvement Project with the Food and Drug 

Administration and the Safe Food Project with the Department 

of Health, the Ministry of Public Health. The Company has also 

initiated a project promoting the use of environment-friendly 

food containers and the garbage separation and recycle project.  

 

4. SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS  
In 2005, the Company organized two shareholders’ 

meetings, an ordinary general meeting of shareholders on April 

28, 2005 and an extraordinary meeting of shareholders on June 

30, 2005. The Company provided clear and complete details of 

the agenda items for consideration. For example, the item on 

the appointment of directors stated the name, age, education, 

working experience and present positions of the candidates 

and the item on the appointment and remuneration of the 

Company’s auditors stated the auditors’ names, company and 

remuneration for approval by shareholders at the meeting. 

The Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive 

Officer and Managing Director give high importance to the 

shareholders’ meetings and were present in all the meetings. 

Members of the Executive Committee were invited to the 

meetings to provide information and answer shareholders’ 

questions. In addition, the Company invited representatives 

from outside organizations such as the Stock Exchange of 

Thailand and its external auditor to observe the meeting 

proceedings. The Company allocated appropriate time for 

shareholders to raise questions and carefully recorded the 

questions and answers, enabling shareholders who were unable   

to attend to be informed of the issues discussed in the meeting.  

Before the commencement of each meeting, shareholders 

were informed of the voting procedures and the vote counting 

method. During the meeting, the Chairman of the meeting 

provided all shareholders with equal opportunities and rights to 

receive information, express opinions, raise questions and 

receive complete answers to matters of interest to them. Voting 

and tally of the votes was done in an open, transparent, 

convenient and fast manner. In the voting, one share counted 

as one vote and the majority of the votes formed the resolution 

except in the case of a special resolution. Voters were required 

to use the voting card provided by the Company. A working 

committee counted and recorded the votes of each agenda 
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item that required a resolution and the results were displayed 

on the computer system.  

In the meeting minutes, the Company recorded the 

names of directors and executive officers who attended the 

meeting and other participants such as members of the Audit 

Committee and the Company’s auditors. The voting results of 

each agenda item were also fully recorded including the 

number of agreed and disagreed votes and silences as well as 

the details of questions and answers of each agenda item. The 

meeting minutes were sent to the Stock Exchange of Thailand 

within 14 days of the meeting date for further dissemination.  

 

5. LEADERSHIP AND VISION  
In determining the vision, mission, business objectives 

and strategies for setting long-term and short-term objectives 

and goals, the Company uses the Balanced Scorecard and the 

Thailand Quality Award criteria to create a balance for all 

stakeholder groups and to become a quality learning 

organization. The Company’s corporate culture values 

teamwork under the 7 Values concept for all employees in the 

organization and the 11 Leadership concept for management 

to follow and apply in treating their staff fairly. Interested 

persons may obtain details of the 7 Values and 11 Leadership 

concepts from the Company’s website. 

In addition, to improve directors’ efficiency and 

effectiveness in conducting business, the Company supports its 

directors to attend training on good corporate governance 

organized by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD). 

Almost all of the Company’s directors have attended the 

Directors Certification Program of the IOD while the rest will 

attend accordingly.  

 

6. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  
The Company has informed the Board of Directors’ 

Meeting and the Executive Committee Meeting about the 

Notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission which 

requires that directors and management prepare and submit a 

report of shares held directly or indirectly by themselves, their 

spouses and their minor children to the SEC and reports of 

changes in securities holding within 3 days of the change. 

Directors and management have also been informed of the 

punishment and penalties of non-compliance to the above 

notification. In addition, a report of securities holdings of 

directors and management at year end is submitted to the 

Board of Directors’ Meeting to confirm transparency.  

The Company has further informed directors and the 

management about the restrictions according to the Securities 

and Stock Exchange Act which are clearly stated in the 

Company’s Code of Business Ethics. Directors, management and 

employees of the Company are prohibited to use the 

Company’s inside information for securities trading and those 

who have access to inside information must use the 

information in a careful manner. Insiders should not engage in 

trading of the Company’s shares prior to the release of financial 

results. The public should have full access to the information 

and should have sufficient time to analyze the information 

before insiders engage in any trading activities. 

The Company has disclosed details of connected 

transactions in the annual report and Form 56-1 and has 

explained that the reasons, appropriateness and necessity of 

the connected transactions are for the Company’s best interests 

like conducting transactions with outside parties.  

In 2005, the Board of Directors approved 3 connected 

transactions between the Company or its subsidiary and related 

parties as follows: 

On April 4, 2005, the Company approved the 

connected transaction worth approximately Baht 28 million 

between C.P. Retailing and Marketing Co., Ltd., a subsidiary 

operating the business of manufacturing and sale of frozen 

foods and bakery, and D Plan Co., Ltd., a real estate 

development company, to expand the storage facility of the 

bakery factory in Ladkrabang. 

On November 14, 2005, the Company approved the 

offering of financial assistance to Shanghai Lotus Supermarket 

Chain Store Co., Ltd., a subsidiary operating a supercenter 

business in the PRC, according to the percentage of its 

shareholding in the amount of US$ 21 million or approximately 

Baht 840 million. 

On December 28, 2005, the Company approved to 

provide financial assistance to Thai Smart Card Co., Ltd., an 

affiliate which operates the business of payment of goods and 

services through Smart Purse, in the amount not exceeding 

Baht 100 million. 

 The Board of Directors considered all three transactions 

above without the participation of directors with a stake in the 

matter under consideration and carefully approved that every 

transaction was transparent, reasonable and for the Company’s 

best interests. After the meetings, the Company prepared the 

minutes and immediately disclosed the Board’s resolutions to 

the Stock Exchange of Thailand.  

 

7. BUSINESS ETHICS 
The Company has published the Code of Business Ethics 

as a guideline for directors, management and employees to 
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perform their appointed duties with high standards and quality 

and in good faith, upholding employee reputation and pride 

and leading to an organization with good corporate 

governance. Shareholders, investors and interested persons 

may find the Code of Business Ethics on the Company’s 

website. 

The Company hopes that management and employees 

consistently adhere to the Code in all cases until it becomes 

their creed. The Business Ethics Working Team was established 

to promote the Code among employees; organize training; 

advocate and support management at all levels to serve as 

examples and encourage their staff to adhere to the Code; 

review compliance; and continuously improve the Code.  

 

8. BALANCE OF POWER FOR NON-EXECUTIVE  
 DIRECTORS  

 The Company’s Board of Directors comprise 13 board 

members, seven of whom are non-executive directors, 3 of 

whom are independent directors, and 3 of whom are executive 

directors. The qualifications of an “independent director” are 

as follows:  

 • Not an employee nor an advisor on retainer or   

 receiving any benefit from the Company, an affiliated   

 company, a subsidiary or an associated company 

 • Hold no more than 0.5 percent of the paid-up capital   

 of the Company, an affiliated company, a subsidiary   

 or an associated company, including shares held by   

 a spouse or minor children  

 • Able to look after the interests of all shareholders   

 equally  

 • Able to prevent conflicts of interest between the   

 Company and management, major shareholders or   

 other related companies with the same management   

 or major shareholders  

 • Able to attend the Board of Directors’ Meetings   

 regularly and make decisions on the Company’s   

 major activities 

 

9. AGGREGATION OR SEGREGATION OF POSITIONS 
The Chairman is not part of the management team and 

is not the same person as the Chief Executive Officer. The Board 

of Directors holds the authority to appoint and remove the 

Chief Executive Officer. The roles of the Board of Directors and 

the management are clearly separated. The Board of Directors 

has determined the scope of authority and responsibilities of 

the Chief Executive Officer and has outlined which important 

matters must be proposed to the Board of Directors and/or the 

shareholders’ meeting for consideration and approval. 

 

10.  REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS AND THE  
  MANAGEMENT  

The Company has proposed the remuneration for each 

director position to the shareholders’ meeting for approval, 

explaining the criteria and procedures and recording details in 

the minutes of the meeting.  

Regarding remuneration for the management, the 

Company has a policy to set remuneration at rates comparable 

to other companies in the same industry and appealing 

enough to attract and retain quality executives. Remuneration is 

determined by duties and responsibilities, individual 

performance as well as the Company’s performance and is 

adjusted accordingly. 

Furthermore, to reward directors’ and management’s 

dedication to their work for the best interests of the Company, 

to create incentives to work for the Company for a long period 

of time, and to provide an opportunity for directors and 

management to share the Company’s success and own part of 

the Company, the Company initiated the Employee Stock 

Option Plan (ESOP) Program, issuing warrants to purchase the 

Company’s ordinary shares to directors and employees.  

 

11.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS  
In 2005, a total of six Board of Directors’ Meetings were 

held. The meeting invitation, agenda and relevant documents 

were sent to the directors at least 7 days prior to the meeting 

date. Besides important agenda items to consider the operating 

performance, financial reports, project plans, budgets and 

progress of various investments, the Company had agenda 

items covering information sharing and regular department 

updates from the management. 

During the meeting, the Chairman provided sufficient 

time for directors to discuss, raise questions, and provide 

suggestions and additional information on matters important 

to the management. Every director was able to express 

independent opinions taking into account the benefits of 

shareholders and all stakeholders equitably. Regarding 

connected transactions, directors with vested interests were 

excluded from attending the meeting and voting. After the 

meeting, the Company prepared the minutes providing a 

complete record of the issues discussed, directors’ opinions and 

the Board’s resolutions. The minutes approved by the Board was 

properly filed for future reference and verification. 
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The Company has set up the Corporate Secretary Office 

with the duties of organizing the Board of Directors’ Meetings 

and the shareholders’ meetings in compliance with the 

Company’s Articles of Association, the laws, and the rules and 

regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the 

Stock Exchange of Thailand; preparing reports and documents 

relating to the Board of Directors and shareholders in a correct 

and timely manner; and following up on matters according to 

the Board’s resolutions. 

12.  AUDIT COMMITTEE  
The Board of Directors has set up the Audit Committee 

to assist with overseeing that the Company’s business is 

conducted in a transparent manner. The Audit Committee 

consists of 3 independent directors and has independence in 

performing its duties. The Audit Committee consults with the 

Company’s auditor for its opinion on the Company’s financial 

reports and internal control and reports the results and 

suggestions to the Board of Directors’ Meeting every quarter as 

per the details in the Audit Committee’s Report. The Company 

has immediately used the suggestions provided by the Audit 

Committee and the Company’s auditor for improvement and 

will report on the improvement results at the next Board of 

Directors’ Meeting.  

13.  INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT  
  SYSTEMS  

The Company has established an effective internal 

control system to ensure efficient operation of the Company’s 

business, financial reporting that is correct and reliable, and 

compliance with related laws. In the previous year, the 

Company’s financial reports were certified by the auditor to 

present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 

the Company.  

The Company has an internal audit unit which reports 

directly to the Audit Committee. The internal audit unit is 

responsible for reviewing the operations of other departments 

to ensure compliance with the internal control system. The 

internal audit unit also provides suggestions and information to 

support internal control, transparent operations, and 

compliance with good corporate governance principles in 

order to prevent conflicts of interest. 

14.  REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
The Board of Directors recognizes its duty and 

responsibility to prepare a report informing shareholders of the 

Company’s operating performance and important events in the 

past year. The Board provides this report in the annual report 

and at the shareholders’ meeting. To gain stakeholders’ 

confidence that the financial reports are prepared according to 

the rules and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and 

related laws, the Board has assigned the Audit Committee to 

review that the financial statements are correctly prepared 

according to generally-accepted accounting standards. The 

Audit Committee also reviews that information disclosure is 

transparent, adequate and complete, especially with regards to 

related transactions with possible conflicts of interest.  

15.  INVESTOR RELATIONS  
The Company discloses company information in a 

correct, complete, timely, transparent and fair manner. The 

Company has set up the Investor Relations Department to 

represent the Company in directly communicating with 

shareholders, investors, analysts, the SET and the SEC. The 

Company’s information including nature of the business, annual 

report, resolutions of the Board and other relevant information 

are disseminated via various channels. These include the 

websites of the SET, the SEC and the Company where interested 

persons may download information (http://7eleven.co.th/

Investor_Zone/investor.html), email, local and international 

investor conferences and roadshows, press releases, and  

analyst meetings to present operating results and provide 

opportunities for enquires. 
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Research and Development 

The Company focuses on satisfying customers’ demands 

to create maximum customer satisfaction, resulting in lasting 

good impressions and brand loyalty. The Company 

continuously engages in research and development of 

products and services to determine customers’ needs and 

wants and to differentiate its products and services, leading to 

value creation for customers, a secure customer base, 

acquisition of new customers and business expansion.  

In the previous year, the Company conducted research 

and development projects in various areas such as 

Determination of Customers’ Needs and Wants

• The Company has established numerous channels 

to listen to and learn about customers’ needs and 

expectations such as through store employees, 

store advisors, the call center, the website, market 

research, experts, academics, sales reports, and 

information from manufacturers, various media and 

the worldwide 7-Eleven network. These channels 

have enabled the Company to keep up with the 

ever-changing demands of consumers and have 

provided the Company with information to set 

strategies and to rapidly respond to the changing 

environment. 

• The Customer Satisfaction Survey is another 

research project that is commissioned annually, 

employing an external research company to survey 

customer satisfaction in various areas and to study 

important factors that influence consumers’ use of 

convenience store services. The survey is used to 

analyze strengths, weaknesses and opportunities for 

product and service improvement to meet 

customers’ demands to the utmost and to establish 

strategies to maintain present customers and 

acquire new customers in the future. 

Development of Products and Services

• The Company has established Team Merchandising 

to search for and select quality products that are 

different from those of competitors and meet the 

demands of various customer groups. Team 

Merchandising also emphasizes hygiene and 

product quality control for consumers’ safety. 

Product quality control covers production, delivery 

and storage based on international standards such 

as GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) and HACCP 

(Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point). 

• In addition, the Company has improved its supply 

chain and lifted the standards of manufacturers that 

supply products to the Company. The Company has 

been involved in the development of production 

processes, raising factory hygiene and safety standards

as well as product quality control systems of various 

manufacturers, especially small manufacturers, to 

ensure that products manufactured and delivered 

to the Company are of the highest quality and safety.

• Improvement of services is another crucial factor in 

creating customer satisfaction. The Company has 

initiated the Mystery Shopper Project where actual 

7-Eleven customers are selected to purchase 

products from different stores at various times of 

the day. The project surveys whether the actual 

service provided meets customers’ requirements 

without the knowledge of store employees.  

With the objective of becoming an organization 

with excellent customer service, the survey  

results are analyzed to find weaknesses, strengths, 

opportunities for customer service improvement at 

each store, and areas where the head office can 

provide support. 

• Besides customers and manufacturers, the Company 

recognizes the importance of franchise stores and 

franchisees and continues to fortify relationships 

with franchisees. The Company has set up a 

research project to survey the satisfaction and 

demands of franchisees every year. The information 

is then used to develop long-lasting ties with 

franchisees, ultimately leading to the best service 

for customers. 

Organizational and Human Resource Development 

• The Company places importance on human resource

development and the happiness of its employees. 

Another research project that the Company organizes

yearly is the employee satisfaction survey which 

allows employees at all levels to express their opinions,

rate their satisfaction towards the Company with 

regards to various aspects, and rate important 

factors in work motivation. This information is essential

for formulating human resource development 

strategies so that employees enjoy their work and 

are happy to serve customers. 
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Future Projects

EXPANSION AND RENOVATION OF  
7-ELEVEN STORES 

In 2006, the Company plans to open another 400-450 

stores to cover densely-populated areas in Bangkok and the 

provinces, both as stand-alone stores and stores in PTT gas 

stations, depending on location and competition.  At present, 

initial investment of new stores requires approximately Baht 3.0 

million per outlet.  The Company has a policy to invest only in 

store equipment and to lease the property from external 

parties.  The lease averages 3 years and can be extended as per 

agreed condition.  The Company expects 25 percent gross 

margin of sales value at store level (depending on product mix 

and competition).  The breakeven point for each store is 

expected at around 3-4 years.  The expected total investment 

for new store expansion is Baht 1,200-1,400 million which the 

Company look forward to be able to augment sales and profit 

in the future. 

 In addition, the Company plans to renovate 400 

stores which have been opened for 6 years.  The renovation and 

equipment replacement will enable the Company to maintain 

its sales volume and customer base.  Approximately Baht 1 

million is required for each store renovation.  The expected 

renovation cost in 2006 is approximately Baht 400 million. 

EXPANSION AND RENOVATION OF LOTUS 
SUPERCENTERS  

In 2006, Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., 

Ltd. (“SLS”) plans to open another 10-15 Lotus Supercenters in 

Shanghai and the Yangtze delta area, the PRC.  Required 

investment per branch is currently around RMB 40-60 million.  

SLS has a policy to lease rather than own the properties or to 

invite local real estate companies into joint-ventures in order to 

lower the cost of investment in new branches.  The Company 

expects 12-13 percent gross margin of sales value at store level 

(depending on product mix and competition).  The breakeven 

point is expected at around 5-8 years.  The expected total 

investment cost is RMB 500-750 million.  Through branch 

expansion, the Company’s sales and profit will increase in the 

future. 

In 2006, the Company also plans to renovate existing 

Lotus branches taking into consideration appropriateness and 

the competitive environment.  The renovation and equipment 

upgrade will enable SLS to maintain its sales volume and 

customer base.  SLS requires approximately RMB 40 million for 

the renovation project.  
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Other Information 

COMPANY HISTORY IN BRIEF 
 
1988 • Granted the 7-Eleven license from 7-Eleven, Inc., USA    
 • Established the Company to operate a convenience store business in Thailand under  the “7-Eleven” trademark  
 
1990 • Changed the Company’s name from “C.P. Convenience Store Co., Ltd.” to  “C.P. Seven Eleven Co., Ltd.” and opened the 

first 7-Eleven outlet at Soi  Patpong, Bangkok  
 
1994 • Commenced the business of bill payment collection service under the name  Counter Service Co., Ltd. (“CS”) 
 
1996 • Commenced the business of manufacturing and sale of frozen foods and bakery under the name C.P. Retailing and 

Marketing Co., Ltd. (“CPRAM”)  
 • Joined with the Friendship Group, the PRC to establish Shanghai C.P. Friendship Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. 

(“SFC”)  
 
1997 • Officially opened DC4, a distribution center in Pathumtanee Province 
 
1998 • Established Lotus Distribution Investment Limited (“LDI”)  
 • Became a public company and changed the Company’s name to C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited  
 • Celebrated the 1,000th 7-Eleven store in Thailand 
 
1999 • Commenced the business of sale and maintenance of retail equipment under the name Retailink (Thailand) Co., 

Ltd. (“RTL”) 
 
2000 • Joined with the China Retail Fund, LDC, a fund under the management of American International Group (AIG), to 

establish Yangtze Supermarket  
 • Investment Co., Ltd. (“YSI”) to invest in the supercenter business in the PRC 
 • Established Shanghai Lotus Supercenter Chain Store Co., Ltd. (“SLS”)  
 
2001 • Incorporated Thai Smart Card Co., Ltd. (“TSC”) with 8 alliances  
 
2002 • Celebrated the 2,000th 7-Eleven store in Thailand 
 • Co-operated with PTT Public Co., Ltd. to exclusively open 7-Eleven stores in PTT gas stations  
 • Received ISO 9001 : 2000 certification from SGS  (Thailand) 
 
2003 • Established Gosoft (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (“GOSOFT”)  
 • Established MAM Heart Co., Ltd. (“MAM”) 
 • Established Dynamic Management Co., Ltd. (“DM”) 
 • Offered shares to the public (IPO) and listed the Company on the Stock Exchange of Thailand under the trading 

ticker CP7-11  
 
2004 • Established Suksapiwat Co., Ltd.  
 • Awarded the Thai Quality Class: TQC at the Thailand Quality Award 2004  
 
2005 • 2005 Celebrated the 3,000th 7-Eleven store in Thailand  
 • Changed the subsidiary’s name from “Shanghai C.P. Friendship Enterprise Development Co., Ltd.” to “Shanghai C.P. 

Jing Cheng Enterprise  Development Co., Ltd.” 
 • Officially opened Panyapiwat Techno Business School, a vocational school  focused on retailing 
 • Ranked in the First Quartile for Good Corporate Governance from the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) 
 • Became the first convenience store in Thailand to offer payment of products and services with Smart Purse, a digital 

cash card 
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For many years, C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited has been involved in numerous projects to 

develop Thai society, both on its own and in co-operation with government organizations and other private 

organizations. These social projects focus on improving education, society, the environment, ethics and virtue, 

and intelligence. Since 1993, the Company has initiated and implemented a wide array of social projects as 

follows: 

 

PROMOTING THAI LANGUAGE:  READING AND WRITING 
Realizing the importance of the Thai language which reflects Thai culture, including reading and 

writing Thai correctly, the Company has jointly worked with government organizations to organize Thai 

language-related activities and promote reading and writing as follows: 

 

Promoting Thai Language for Thai Society Project and Reading Promotion Project 

The Company has embarked on the Promoting Thai Language for Thai Society Project and the Reading 

Promotion Project in collaboration with the Ministry of Education and the Bangkok Department of Education 

since 1994. The activities of both projects are targeted at primary school students, high school students, 

teachers/professors, families as well as children who need special care such as children with hearing 

disabilities. These projects emphasize self-development through reading and application with other skills in 

daily life. 

 

7 Book Awards Project 

Expanding on the success of the Reading Promotion Project, the Company initiated the 7 Book Awards 

in 2004 with the objective of promoting and upholding the quality of Thai literature. Having been warmly 

welcomed by writers and literature experts, the 7 Book Awards was organized for the second time in 2005. 

Awards were given to outstanding quality books in 7 categories from a total of 413 entries. The first- prize 

winner of each book category received an honorable plaque from Her Royal Highness Princess Maha Chakri 

Sirindhorn as well as a cash prize.  

The Company has a policy to regularly organize the 7 Book Awards every year to create new writers 

and support writers and readers for the Thai literary circle. 

 

Literature Seeds Project and Cartoon Camp Project 

From the 7 Book Awards in 2004, the Company realized that many Thai youths were interested in 

cartoons and literary work but still lacked writing skills. Thus the Company joined with Srinakarinwiroj 

University and the Writers Association of Thailand to implement the Literature Seeds Project to encourage and 

support Thai youth to become quality writers in the future. In the same year, the Company coordinated with 

the Thai Cartoons Association to organize the Cartoon Camp Project to develop cartoon drawing techniques 

and cartoon creativity.  

In 2005, the Company continued to collaborate with the aforementioned organizations to organize the 

Literature Seeds Project and Cartoon Camp Project simultaneously under the name, the 2nd Literature Seeds-

Cartoonists Project, as both camps could share related activities, especially technical seminars by academics 

and experts who encourage youth to have a public mind. The 2nd Literature Seeds-Cartoonists Project   

received immense interest and participation from Thai youths nationwide. 

  

Seven Eleven for Thai Society 
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ETHICS AND VIRTUE 
Buddhism Teaching Development Project 

To promote virtue and ethics which is necessary in present day society, the Company has collaborated 

with the Ministry of Education to implement the Buddhism Teaching Development Project since 1996. The 

objective of this project is to enhance the confidence, knowledge and understanding of the principles of 

Buddhism, and motivation to teach of Buddhism instructors so that they can effectively convey knowledge to 

their students.  

More than 6,000 Buddhism teachers have received training from this project to date. In addition, 

outstanding Buddhism teachers have been selected to provide encouragement to Buddhism teachers in 

schools nationwide. 

 

INTELLIGENCE 
Go Game Project 

The Company believes that development of intelligence is necessary for the country’s youth as well as 

the general public. Go, an ancient Chinese board game and one of the four national arts of China, is widely 

believed to help enhance the players’ systematic and strategic thinking, ability to analyze the micro and macro 

picture, and ability to effectively use existing resources. The Company, therefore, has strongly supported the 

Go Game among Thais in co-operation with the Go Game Association of Thailand. Go Game lessons are 

provided to kindergarten, primary school and high school students as well as the general public. Furthermore, 

local competitions are organized to develop Go Game skills and select youths to represent Thailand in 

international competitions. At present, more than 2 million people throughout the country know and play the 

Go Game. The Go Game will be a part of the 2006 National Sports Competition to be held in Supanburi 

Province.  

  

EDUCATION 
Bilateral Education Project 

The Bilateral Education Project, which supports the development of a modern curriculum in the field of 

retailing, was developed in co-operation with the Ministry of Education since 1993. This project provides an 

opportunity for interested students to learn from real-life experience through working in 7-Eleven stores near 

their home or school 4 days per week and study basic courses at school 2 days per week. The Company 

provides scholarships to students who participate in the project, an opportunity to join the Company after 

graduation and promising career prospects.  

Recently, the Company has established Panyapiwat Techno Business, a retailing vocational school, with 

the objective of creating retail professionals to support the expansion of the retail industry. At the same time, 

the school aims to help society by molding the new generation of vocational students to have 3 distinct 

attributes: learning through real working experience, earning income while studying and being employed 

after graduation. 

 

SOCIAL SERVICES 
The Company has utilized its network of more than 3,000 7-Eleven stores across the country to provide 

social services as well as support government organizations. The Company’s social projects include donation 

campaigns to help tsunami victims and flood victims every year, selling electricity-saving light bulbs, providing 

free drinking water to policemen nationwide and a consumer hotline. 

The Company’s involvement in social activities is according to its mission of building a strong 

relationship with society and helping develop society in order to create a good society with a good quality of 

life. Furthermore, the Company has a clear policy to continuously implement social activities to contribute 

back to society.  
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Related Transactions 

In 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries conducted 

several transactions with related parties.  These inter-company 

transactions were made and agreed as a normal business 

transaction at general market prices and commercial terms.  

(Details are provided in Note 4 of the Company’s financial 

statements for the year ended December 31, 2005.)  The Audit 

Committee has reviewed that all transactions were reasonable 

and transparent and complied with the rules and regulations 

under the notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand 

regarding related transactions of a listed company.  The related 

transactions incurred in 2005 were as follows: 

 

Trade Accounts Receivable  
As at December 31, 2005, the Company and its 

subsidiaries had a trade accounts receivable balance with 

related parties in the amount of Baht 231.2 million or 26.98  

percent of the Company and its subsidiaries’ total trade 

accounts receivable. 

 

Other Accounts Receivable 
As at December 31, 2005, the Company and its 

subsidiaries had an other accounts receivable balance with 

related parties in the amount of Baht 103.2 million or 7.08  

percent of the Company and its subsidiaries’ total other 

receivables. 

 

Trade Accounts Payable  
As at December 31, 2005, the Company and its 

subsidiaries had a trade accounts payable balance with related 

parties in the amount of Baht 1,786.9 million or 8.91  percent of 

the Company and its subsidiaries’ total trade accounts payable. 

 

Other Accounts Payable 
As at December 31, 2005, the Company and its 

subsidiaries had an other accounts payable balance with related 

parties in the amount of Baht 44.1 million or 100  percent of the 

Company and its subsidiaries’ total other payables. 

 

Sales of Goods 
In 2005, the transactions for sales of goods with the 

Company’s related parties were determined and agreed on a 

normal course of business at general market prices and 

commercial terms.  These transactions for the fiscal year ended 

December 31, 2005 amounted to Baht  765.9 million or 0.82 

percent of the Company and its subsidiaries’ total sales.  

 

Purchases of Goods 
In 2005, the transactions for purchases of goods with 

the Company’s related parties were determined and agreed on 

a normal course of business at general market prices and 

commercial terms.  These transactions for the fiscal year ended 

December 31, 2005 amounted to Baht 6,373 million or 8.35 

percent of the Company and its subsidiaries’ total cost of sales.  

 

Other Operating Income 
In 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries recognized 

other income from related parties in the amount of Baht 113.3 

million or 2.51 percent of the Company and its subsidiaries’ total 

other income. 

 

Rental and Service Fees 
In 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries paid rental 

and service fees according to the lease agreements to related 

parties.  The rental and service fees were made and agreed at 

standard rates advised by the lessor.  These fees for the fiscal 

year ended December 31, 2005 amounted to Baht 105.7 million. 

 

Purchases of Fixed Assets 
In 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries had fixed 

assets purchase transactions with related parties at prices 

determined and agreed on a normal course of business at 

general market prices and commercial terms.  These transactions 

for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 amounted to Baht 

387.2 million. 

 

Technical Service Fees 
In 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries paid technical 

service fees to related parties based on contract prices.  The 

technical service fees for the fiscal year ended December 31, 

2005 amounted to Baht 11.5 million or  0.06 percent of the 

Company and its subsidiaries’ total selling and administrative 

expenses. 

 

Other Expenses 
In 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries paid other 

remunerations to related parties in the amount of Baht 73.6 

million or 0.36 percent of the Company and its subsidiaries’ total 

selling and administrative expenses. 
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Procedures for the Approval of Related 
Transactions 

In the case of transactions for the purchase and sale of 

goods and services under the ordinary course of business, the 

Company has procedures to protect investors and prevent the 

transfer of interests.  The Internal Audit Unit reviews the 

necessity of inter-company transactions and ensures that the 

prices of the transactions for goods and services are at the 

prevailing market rates.  The Internal Audit Unit provides reports 

of related transactions to the Audit Committee every quarter 

and the Audit Committee further reports to the Board of 

Directors.    

In the case of the purchases and sales of shares or fixed 

assets, which are transactions that occur infrequently, the 

Company has a policy to engage external professional 

appraisers or independent financial advisors to provide counsel 

to the Audit Committee for further proposal to the Board of 

Directors.  

 

Policy on Related Transactions 
The Board of Directors has a policy that clearly states 

that related transactions may occur under the ordinary course 

of business but these transactions must be necessary and have 

prices comparable to prevailing market rates for the best 

interests of the Company.   

As the Company and its subsidiaries operate a retail 

business and must purchase and sell goods and services with 

other companies as well as related companies, the Company 

expects related transactions for the purchase and sale of goods 

and services will still exist in line with the Company and its 

subsidiaries’ business expansion.  Other types of transactions 

will depend on business necessity.  Short-term loans to related 

companies will depend on the short-term financial needs of the 

related companies and the Company’s policy on cash flow 

management.  
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Management Discussion and Analysis 
       of Financial Status and Operating Results 

 

Overview of Operations 
The Company believes that the convenience store 

business in Thailand which is its main business remains 

important as a primary source of income. Meanwhile, the 

supercenter business in the PRC diversifies the Company’s 

business risk for future potential in a large economy. Other 

businesses operated by its subsidiaries which support the 

convenience store business in Thailand use the 7-Eleven store 

network to add value to the Company’s products and services.  

The Company’s competitive advantage lies in its 

extensive store network. With outlets in prime locations 

scattered across the country, the Company is able to create easy 

access and greater convenience for customers. Modern 

management and information technology systems further 

enhance customer satisfaction by offering efficient and speedy 

services. The Company also has well-managed distribution 

centers to support timely and efficient product distribution to 

its stores as well as ensuring product quality and lowering costs. 

Moreover, the Company has constantly developed and 

introduced unique products and services to match customers’ 

needs by differentiating itself from competitors. For example, 

the stores offer bill payment services and a wide array of   

ready-to-eat food and beverages. 

Expansion of domestic consumption, besides contributing 

to economic growth, has caused intensive competition in the 

retail industry. The Company has focused on improving its 

operation and management systems both at the store and 

head office level, effectively managing costs by increasing 

productivity of every unit, maintaining its current customers 

and expanding its customer base.  

However, there is still a lot of opportunity for the 

convenience store business to grow as consumers are 

increasingly demanding convenience. The Company believes 

that operators who have systematic finance, personnel and   

IT systems, possess economies of scale, and continuously 

improve product selection and quality of services will be able   

to continuously generate increased sales and profits.  

The Company believes that the supercenter business in 

the PRC will continue to expand in line with the PRC’s high 

economic growth and expansion of its store network.   

A combination of an advanced information technology system 

and management expertise provides competitive edge over its 

competitors. However, due to increasing competition, the 

supercenter business in the PRC will continue to develop itself 

in human resources management and better product selection 

to satisfy customers’ demands, resulting in sales improvement 

and cost reduction. The Company believes the superstore 

business will continue to grow as planned and create profits for 

the Company.  

 

Analysis of Operating Results for the Year Ended 
December 31, 2005 Compared to the Operating 
Results for the Year Ended December 31, 2004 

In 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries’ total revenues 

was Baht 98,948 million, improving 26 percent from that of 

2004. The growth in total revenues was primarily attributable to 

higher net sales and service income, which increased 26 

percent from that of 2004 to Baht 94,356 million in 2005. 

Net sales and service income of Baht 94,356 million 

originated from three main businesses, (1) Baht 50,132 million 

from the convenience store business or 53 percent of total net 

sales and service income, (2) Baht 28,945 million from the 

supercenter business or 31 percent of total net sales and service 

income and (3) Baht 15,278 million from other businesses or 16 

percent of total net sales and service income.  
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The growth in net sales and service income was mainly 

due to the expansion of 450 7-Eleven outlets, which reached 

the target of 400-450 stores, and the expansion of 15 Lotus 

Supercenter stores. In addition, improvement in the average 

same store sales/store/day of 7-Eleven from Baht 55,023 million 

in 2004 to Baht 60,886 million in 2005 and increase in other 

income such as royalties and income from marketing support 

contributed to higher total net sales and service income. The 

average same store sales/store/day of Lotus Supercenter 

declined from RMB 797,000 in 2004 to RMB 626,000 in 2005. 

Gross Profit 

In 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries’ gross profit 

was Baht 17,304 million, a rise of 25 percent year-on-year.   

The growth in gross profit was due to higher sales and service 

income. In addition, as a result of the improvement in   

the product selection process, the Company was able to 

maintain a gross profit margin of 18 percent in 2005, 

comparable to that of the previous year. 

Selling and Administrative Expenses 

In 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries’ selling and 

administrative expenses were Baht 20,485 million, increasing 37 

percent year-on-year due to new store expansion of both   

7-Eleven and Lotus Supercenter.  

The increase in selling and administrative expenses 

came from three major areas. 

1) Personnel expenses, which accounted for 30 

percent of the total SG&A, increased to Baht 6,040 million as a 

result of store expansion. 

2) Rental expenses, which accounted for 16 percent of 

the total SG&A, increased to Baht 3,199 million following the rise 

in the number of stores and higher lease rates in some specific 

areas.  

Other SG&A such as depreciation and amortization, 

utility expenses, advertising and promotion expenses, and other 

SG&A (including servicing expenses, transportation expenses, 

supplies expenses, etc) increased in relation to sales growth and 

store expansion of 7-Eleven and Lotus Supercenter.  

Net Profit 

In 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries net profit was 

Baht 1,508 million, or Baht 0.34 per share, decreasing Baht 188 

million or 11 percent when compared to 2004 net profit of Baht 

1,696 million, or Baht 3.85 per share*. The Company and its 

subsidiaries’ return on shareholders’ equity was 15 percent in 

2005, compared to 18 percent in 2004. 

* The Company has changed par value of Baht 5 to Baht 1 in 2005. 

 

Operating Results of the Convenience Store 
Business  

In 2005, the convenience store business had net sales 

and service income of Baht 50,132 million, an increase of Baht 

11,948 million or 31 percent from the previous year. The growth 

in net sales and service income was mainly due to store 

expansion and higher same store sales/store/day. In addition, 

the Company has transferred phone card sales from Counter 

Service Company Limited which was recorded under other 

businesses to C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited since 

September 2005. However, sales of the convenience store 

business excluding phone card sales continued to grow in line 

with store expansion of 450 stores and 10.7 percent same store 

sales growth. Such growth stems from both average customers 

per store per day increasing from 956 in 2004 to 1,032 in 2005 

or an increment of 7.9 percent and spending per ticket 

increasing from Baht 56 in 2004 to Baht 58 in 2005 or an 

increment of 3.6 percent. The new stores did not cannibalize 

the sales of existing stores but enhanced the total sales. 

Furthermore, the product selection process was developed to 

meet consumers’ requirements and preferences by geography, 

encouraging higher spending per visit per store.  

The cost of sales of the convenience store business was 

75 percent of sales in 2005, compared with 76 percent in 2004.   

The decline in the cost of sales was a result of a more effective 

product selection process. In addition, changes in the recording 

of phone card sales to be under the convenience store business 

caused gross profit to rise to Baht 12,607 million in 2005, an 

increase of Baht 3,295 million or 35 percent from 2004. 

Operating expenses increased Baht 2,742 million or 28 percent 

from 2004 due to higher sales and store expansion. 

 Other income also increased. For example, royalties 

increased due to greater popularity in 7-Eleven franchising and 

rental income and income from marketing support also rose 

due to higher sales and store expansion. 

The convenience store business had an operating profit 

of Baht 2,001 million in 2005, up 117 percent from 2004. 

 

Operating Results of the Supercenter Business 
In 2005, the supercenter business had net sales and 

service income of Baht 28,945 million, expanding Baht 7,527 

million or 35 percent from the prior year. Growth in net sales 

and service income mainly resulted from the increase in the 

number of Lotus Supercenter stores. The cost of sales was 88 

percent of the total sales in 2005, slightly increasing from 87 

percent in 2004 due to changes in product mix. Based on store 

expansion, the gross profit of the superstore store business 
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amounted to Baht 3,641 million in 2005, growing Baht 576 

million or 20 percent from the previous year. Operating 

expenses increased from Baht 4,436 million in 2004 to Baht 

7,006 million in 2005 or an increment of 20 percent. Other 

revenues like marketing support also increased from Baht 2,065 

million in 2004 to Baht 2,347 million in 2005 or an increment of 

14 percent yoy.  

The supercenter business experienced an operating loss 

of Baht 1,198 million in 2005, a decrease of 333 percent from 

2004 which posted the operating profit of Baht 514 million. 

Operating Results of Other Businesses 
Other businesses comprise of bill payment services, 

manufacturing and sale of frozen foods and bakery, distribution 

and maintenance of retail equipment and other businesses,  

etc. In 2005, the operating profit generated from other 

businesses was Baht 529 million, declining 54 percent from 

2004 as phone card sales which was previously recorded under 

other businesses was transferred to the convenience store 

business. 

Analysis of the Company and its Subsidiaries’ 
Financial Status for the Year Ended December  
31, 2005 
Total Assets  

As at December 31, 2005, the Company and its 

subsidiaries reported total assets of Baht 40,230 million, an 

increase of 39 percent compared to the previous year, with 

details as follows: 

1. an increase in cash and cash equivalents of Baht 

1,425 million or 20 percent from the end of 2004 as a result of 

an increase in cash flow from operations, 

2. an increase in inventory of Baht 2,398 million or 42 

percent from the end of 2004 as a result of higher sales and 

number of stores, 

3. an increase in fixed assets of Baht 5,681 million or 48 

percent from the end of 2004 as a result of investment in store 

expansion of both 7-Eleven and Lotus Supercenter, store 

renovation, investment in a new distribution center on the 

eastern side of Bangkok and investment in subsidiaries. 

Total Liabilities 

As at December 31, 2005, the Company and its 

subsidiaries had total liabilities of Baht 29,708 million, increasing  

56 percent from the previous year mainly due to an increase in 

accounts payable in line with higher sales. At the same time,  

the Company obtained favorable credit terms from suppliers as 

a result of higher trade volumes.  

Total Shareholders’ Equity 

As at December 31, 2005, consolidated total shareholders’

equity was Baht 10,522 million, up 6 percent from the previous 

year. This was due to an increase in retained earnings from the 

end of 2004 as a result of an increase in net profit generated 

from business operations.  

Analysis of Statements of Cash Flows, Liquidity and 
Sources of Funds of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries for the Year Ended December 31, 2005 
Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2004
Liquidity 

As at December 31, 2005, consolidated cash and cash 

equivalents was Baht 8,581 million, an increase of 20 percent 

from the end of 2004 due to the following activities: 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

In 2005, net cash flow from operating activities totaled 

Baht 5,883 million, down 12 percent from the end of 2004. This 

was mainly due to the operating loss from the supercenter 

business which caused net profit to fall.

In 2005, net cash flow used in investing activities 

amounted to Baht 6,955 million, rising 34 percent from the end 

of 2004. The main investments were store expansion of 7-Eleven 

in Thailand and Lotus Supercenter in the PRC, a new 

distribution center, increased investment its subsidiary CPRAM 

and purchase of land to expand the school business. 

In 2005, net cash flow from financing activities totaled 

Baht 2,432 million, increasing 1,104 percent year-on-year. In 

order to support business expansion, foreign subsidiaries 

increased short-term borrowings from financial institutions in 

the amount of Baht 2,608 million. Other major financing 

activities included an increased investment of Baht 860 million 

in subsidiaries by minor shareholders and a dividend payment 

of Baht 993 million to shareholders.  
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Factors Which May Impact Operating Results and 
Financial Status of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries in the Future 

The constantly evolving demands of consumers is a 

major factor that affects the Company’s revenues and profits. If 

the Company is able to offer products and services that meet 

customers’ needs, its customer base will expand. It will be able 

to sell more products and its gross margin will improve. With 

regards to the convenience store business, offering 

“convenience” to customers implies a wide variety of products 

and services that meet customers’ demands and easy-to-access 

locations. In addition, the Company plans to increase the sales 

proportion of food products in order to gain higher frequency 

of visits and better profit margins. In addition, the Company’s 

policy is to continue store expansion to reach more population 

density. 

On the supercenter business side, the Company will 

focus on offering products that match customers’ demands at 

reasonable prices. An increase in the number of Lotus 

Supercenters will bring about economies of scale, especially 

with regards to overhead expenses and bargaining power with 

suppliers. Moreover, Lotus Supercenter has a policy to increase 

the number of House Brand products to maintain its customer 

base as well as earn higher profit margin. The Company has 

invested in a store management system, distribution system 

and food processing system in order to prepare for business 

expansion and create competitive advantage. The Company 

aims to improve its systems on a continual basis to support 

future revenue and profit growth.  

The Company expects that investment in store 

expansion of both 7-Eleven and Lotus Supercenter is a driving 

factor to increase sales and operating profit in the future. 
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The company’s Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee consisted of the three independent directors including Lieut. 

Suchai Shaovisidha as the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Pridi Boonyoung and Mr. Padoong  Techasarintr as the Audit 

Committee members.  On November 12, 2005, Lieut. Suchai Shaovisidha resigned from a company’s director, after that on December 

28, 2005 the Board of Directors appointed Mr.Komain Bhatarabhirom as an independent director and the Chairman of the Audit 

Committee.  The Audit Committee has been working and having the responsibilities as assigned by the company’s Board of Directors. 

The key duties comprise of reviewing the financial statements, ensuring an appropriate and efficient internal control and operating with 

transparency according to the good corporate governance guidelines as well as scrutinising appointment of the external auditors. 

During the year 2005, the Audit Committee had 11 meetings which covered the main points as follows: 

Reviewing the financial statements:  
The Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly and annually financial statement for the year 2005.  It was concluded that they 

were correctly prepared in accordance with the accounting standards with complete and sufficient disclosure of information 

Observing the good corporate governance:   
The company’s Management has determined and emphasized in managing the business in accordance with the good 

corporate governance guidelines for transparency and good ethic in order to build up confidence of the shareholders and all other 

involved parties. 

Internal Control System:  
The Audit Committee reviewed the internal auditing plan for the year 2005 and provided the suggestions to adjust the plan to 

comply with the company’s policies and procedures.  The internal audit reports have been regularly reviewed and the remarks have 

always been given on the important matters in order to achieve the efficient and effective results.  The scope of the internal audit also 

covered all the operating  units of both local and foreign subsidiaries 

The related transactions:   
The Audit Committee reviewed the disclosure of the related transactions including all the transactions which may cause conflict 

of interests. It was found that all transactions were conducted based on the usual business practice and have been sufficiently disclosed 

and in accordance with the regulations of the SET  

Risk Management:   
The Company’s Management has been focused on managing risks by setting up the risks assessment guidelines and its 

mechanism as well as all the necessary processes in order to mitigate the impacts which may happen in the operation 

The Audit Committee has independently conducted their assignments and has been receiving good cooperation from the 

Management.  They had meetings with the external auditors to discuss and to seek comments and/or remarks regarding to the 

financial statements and accounting internal control.  There were no irregularities and significant errors. 

The Audit Committee reviewed and proposed to the Board of Directors the appointment of Mr. Vairoj Jindamaneepitak,    

Ms. Somboon Supasiripinyo,  Ms. Kalyarat Chaivorapongsa or Mr. Charoen Phosamritlert of KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd., as the 

Company’s external auditors for the year 2006 to be further approved at the General Meeting of the shareholders 

 

 

February 21, 2006 

On behalf of the Audit Committee 

 

 

 

 

(Mr. Komain Bhatarabhirom) 

Chairman of Audit Commitee 

   Audit Committee’s Report 
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Evening... The sun retreats from the sky 
Streets are crowded with cars headed for home 

A loving family and radiant smiles are waiting for you 
Lie down to relax with hope for the new day 

Like 7-Eleven that is ready to provide comfort, anytime, anywhere 

¬“¡‡¬Áπ...¥«ßÕ“∑‘µ¬å≈“≈—∫®“°¢Õ∫øÑ“ 
∑âÕß∂ππ §√“§√Ë”‰ª¥â«¬‡À≈à“√∂√“ ∑’Ë¡ÿ àß°≈—∫‡§À ∂“π 

§√Õ∫§√—«Õ—πÕ∫Õÿàπ √Õ¬¬‘È¡∑’Ë‡ªïò¬¡‰ª¥â«¬§«“¡ ÿ¢ °Ì“≈—ß√Õ§ÿ≥Õ¬Ÿà 
‡Õπ°“¬≈ßæ—°ºàÕπ æ√âÕ¡§«“¡À«—ß„π‡™â“«—π„À¡à 

‡ ¡◊Õπ‡´‡«àπÕ’‡≈ø‡«àπ ∑’Ë§Õ¬„Àâ§«“¡Õ∫Õÿàπµ≈Õ¥‡«≈“‰¡à«à“¬“¡„¥ 
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Nonooon onoono non oonoooon ononono 
nononon ononnonon ononono onononononoo 

no nononoonon oonnono onoono onnono 
¬“¡‡¬Áπ...¥«ßÕ“∑‘μ¬å≈“≈—∫®“°¢Õ∫øÑ“ 

∑âÕß∂ππ §√“§√àÌ“‰ª¥â«¬‡À≈à“√∂√“ ∑’Ë¡ÿàß°≈—∫‡§À ∂“π 
§√Õ∫§√—«Õ—∫Õ∫Õÿàπ √Õ¬¬‘È¡∑’Ë‡ªïò¬¡‰ª¥â«¬§«“¡ ÿ¢ °Ì“≈—ß√Õ§ÿ≥Õ¬Ÿà 

‡Õπ°“¬≈ßæ—°ºàÕπ æ√âÕ¡§«“¡À«—ß„π‡™â“«—π„À¡à 
‡ ¡◊Õπ‡´‡«àπÕ’‡≈ø‡«àπ ∑’Ë§Õ¬„Àâ§«“¡Õ∫Õÿàπμ≈Õ¥‡«≈“‰¡à«à“¬“¡„¥ 

Audit report of Certified Public Accountant 

To the shareholders of C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited  
 

I have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries 

as at 31 December 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash  

flows for the years then ended. I have also audited the balance sheets of C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and the  

related statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. The management of C.P.  

Seven Eleven Public Company Limited is responsible for the correctness and completeness of information presented in these  

financial statements. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits. As described in  

Note 2 to the financial statements, I have not audited the financial statements of certain foreign subsidiaries which are included  

in the preparation of the financial statements. The consolidated financial statements reflect total assets of these foreign subsidiaries 

(after the elimination of the outstanding intra-group balances) as at 31 December 2005 and 2004 totalling Baht 18,994.6 million  

and Baht 11,611.2 million, respectively; and total revenues of these foreign subsidiaries (after the elimination of intra-group 

transactions) for the years then ended totaling Baht 31,473.5 million and Baht 23,715.8 million, respectively. The financial statements  

of C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited reflect investments in the said foreign subsidiaries recorded by the equity method  

as at 31 December 2005 and 2004 totalling Baht 1,254.5 million and Baht 1,342.3 million, respectively; and share of their net profits 

(losses) for the years then ended totaling Baht (411.9) million and Baht 167.5 million, respectively. The financial statements of the  

said foreign subsidiaries have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to me and my report, insofar  

as it relates to the amounts for the said foreign subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements and the financial 

statements of C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited, is based on the reports of these other auditors. 

 

I conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standard. Those standards require that I plan  

and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as  

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audits and the reports of the other auditors, which referred  

to in the first paragraph provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 

In my opinion, based on my audits and the reports of the other auditors referred to in the first paragraph, the  

financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial positions of C.P. Seven Eleven Public  

Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2005 and 2004, and the 

results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Sudchit Boonprakob) 

Certified Public Accountant 

Registration number 2991 

 

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd. 

Bangkok  

24 February 2006 

 



2005 AN
N

UAL REPORT C.P. SEVEN
 ELEVEN

 PCL.  

91

C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Balance Sheets 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 

The accompanying notes are and integral part of these financial statements. 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Balance Sheets 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 

The accompanying notes are and integral part of these financial statements. 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Statements of Income 
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 

The accompanying notes are and integral part of these financial statements. 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Statements of Cash FlowsCash FlowsCash FlowsCash FlowsCash FlowsCash FlowsCash FlowsCash FlowsCash FlowsCash FlowsCash Flows
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 31 December 2005 and 2004 31 December 2005 and 2004 31 December 2005 and 2004 31 December 2005 and 2004 31 December 2005 and 2004 31 December 2005 and 2004 31 December 2005 and 2004ded 31 December 2005 and 2004ded

The accompanying notes are and integral part of these financial statements.
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 

The accompanying notes are and integral part of these financial statements. 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 

The accompanying notes are and integral part of these financial statements. 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 



√“
¬ß

“π
ª√

–®
”ª

ï 2
54

8 
∫¡

®.
 ´

’.æ
’. ‡

´‡
«àπ

Õ’‡
≈ø

‡«
àπ 

186

C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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C.P. Seven Eleven Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004 
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Summary of Warrant Information 
As of December 31, 2005, the details of warrants are as follows:  

Type of Warrant  : Warrants offering to directors and employees of the Company and subsidiaries 

Issuance date : November 17, 2003 

Terms : Not more than 5 years 

Offering price per unit : 0 Baht (zero Baht) 

Existing warrants : 7,646,089 units 

Exercise price  :  4.20 Baht per share 

Exercise ratio : One unit of warrant for ten ordinary shares 

Exercise date  : Twice a year, every 15th March and 15th September 

The first exercise date  : March 15, 2005 

The last exercise date : September 15, 2008 

Financial Advisor : Merrill Lynch Phatra Securities Co.,Ltd. 

Shares Registrar : Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. 

  2/7 Moo4 Viphavadee Road, Laksi 

  Bangkok 10210 

  Tel. 0-2596-900 

Reference Persons Shares Registrar : Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. 

Auditor : Mrs. Sudchit Boonprakob Certified Public 

  Auditor Registration no. 2991 and/or 

  Mr. Vichien Thamtrakul Certificated Public Auditor 

  Registration no. 3183 and/or 

  Miss Thipsuda Chamnanvanichkul Certified Public Auditor 

  Registration no. 3377 

  KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd. 
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Shareholdings of the Board of Directors and Management 
As at December 31, 2005

 
 Shareholder’s name and designation Number of Number of 
   ordinary shares warrants 
  (share)  (unit)   
 
Lieut.Suchai Jaovisidha 112,500 33,750 
Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee 
(resigned on November 12, 2005)    

Mr.Komain Bhatarabhirom 0 0 
Chairman of the Audit Committee 
(effective on December 28, 2005)    

Mr.Pridi   Boonyoung 112,500 33,750 
Independent Director and Audit Committee    

Mr.Padoong   Techasarintr 112,500 33,750 
Independent Director and Audit Committee    

Mr.Dhanin Chearavanont 750,000 450,000 
Chairman    

Mr.Korsak   Chairasmisak 8,404,000 300,000 
Vice Chairman and CEO    

Mr.Soopakij   Chearavanont 27,500 8,250 
Director    

Ms.Rachel   Y. Chiang 0 16,500 
Director    

Mr.Umroong Sanphasitvong 1,375,000 112,500 
Director     

Mr.Narong  Chearavanont 27,500 16,500 
Director    

Mr.Prasert   Jarupanich 112,500 33,750 
Director    

Mr.Athueck   Asvanund 27,500 8,250 
Director 
(resigned on August 11, 2005)    

Mr.Adirek   Sripratak 0 0 
Director 
(effective on August 11, 2005)    

Mr.Pittaya   Jearavisitkul 0 131,250 
Director and Deputy CEO    

Mr.Piyawat   Titasattavorakul 0 131,250 
Director and Managing Director    

Mr.Kamol   Sakdejayont 252,750 75,825 
Vice President – Finance and Accounting 
(pass away on February 1, 2006)    

Mr.Chuan   Nimkittikul 298,620 77,700 
Vice President - Purchasing and Distribution    

Mr.Tanin   Buranamanit 30,000 79,650 
Vice President – Operation and Marketing    

Mr.Suwit   Kingkaew 153,370 74,025 
Vice President – General Managemant    

Mr.Kosa   Pongsupath 0 63,750 
Vice President – Information Technology    

Mr. Suraphan   Pussadej 0 0 
Vice President – Human Resource     

112,500 33,750

(resigned on November 12, 2005)    

0 0

(effective on December 28, 2005)    

112,500 33,750
Independent Director and Audit Committee    

112,500 33,750
Independent Director and Audit Committee    

750,000 450,000
Chairman    

8,404,000 300,000
Vice Chairman and CEO    

27,500 8,250
Director    

0 16,500
Director    

1,375,000 112,500
Director     

27,500 16,500
Director    

112,500 33,750
Director    

27,500 8,250 

(resigned on August 11, 2005)    

0 0

(effective on August 11, 2005)    

0 131,250
Director and Deputy CEO    

0 131,250
Director and Managing Director    

252,750 75,825

(pass away on February 1, 2006)    

298,620 77,700
Vice President - Purchasing and Distribution    

30,000 79,650
Vice President – Operation and Marketing    

153,370 74,025
Vice President – General Managemant    

0 63,750
Vice President – Information Technology    

0 0
Vice President – Human Resource     
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Subsidiaries and Affiliates in Thailand 
Counter Service Co., Ltd. 
Type of business : Bill payment collection 
Head office : Thailand 
Paid up capital : Baht 70 million 
Par value : Baht 10 per share 
Shareholding : 99.99% 
 
C.P. Retailing and Marketing Co., Ltd. 
Type of business : Manufacturing and sale  
  of frozen foods and bakery 
Head office : Thailand 
Paid up capital : Baht 350 million 
Par value : Baht 10 per share 
Shareholding : 99.99% 
 
Retailink (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 
Type of business : Sale and maintenance of  
  retail equipment 
Head office : Thailand 
Paid up capital : Baht 20 million 
Par value : Baht 10 per share 
Shareholding : 99.99% 
 
Gosoft (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 
Type of business : Information technology  
  services 
Head office : Thailand 
Paid up capital : Baht 2 million 
Par value : Baht 10 per share 
Shareholding : 99.99% 
 
M.A.M. Heart Co., Ltd. 
Type of business : Marketing services 
Head office : Thailand 
Paid up capital : Baht 1 million 
Par value : Baht10 per share 
Shareholding : 99.99% 
 
Dynamic Management Co., Ltd. 
Type of business : Logistics services 
Head office : Thailand 
Paid up capital : Baht 2 million 
Par value : Baht 10 per share 
Shareholding : 99.99% 
 
Suksapiwat Co., Ltd. 
Type of business : Retail Vocational school 
Head office : Thailand 
Paid up capital : Baht 300 million 
Par value : Baht 10 per share 
Shareholding : 99.99% 
 
Thai Smart Card Co., Ltd. 
Type of business : Payment for products and  
  services though smart card 
Head office : Thailand 
Paid up capital : Baht 395 million 
Par value : Baht 10 per share 
Shareholding : 32.24% 
 

Subsidiaries Information 
C.P. Seven Eleven Company Limited 

Subsidiaries and Affiliates in overseas 
Lotus Distribution Investment Limited 
Type of business : Investment business 
Head office : British Virgin Island 
Paid up capital : USD 30.9 million 
Shareholding : 100% 
 
 
Yangtze Supermarket Investment Co., Ltd. 
Type of business : Investment business 
Head office : British Virgin Island 
Paid up capital : USD 57.97 million 
Shareholding : 55% 
 
 
 
Emerald Innovation Management Co., Ltd. 
Type of business : Investment business 
Head office : British Virgin Island 
Paid up capital : USD 3.41 million 
Shareholding : 55% 
 
 
Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. 
Type of business : Supercenter business 
Head office : People’s Republic of China 
Paid up capital : USD 84 million 
Shareholding : 29.70% 
 
 
 
Shanghai C.P. Jing Cheng Enterprise  
Development Co., Ltd. 
Type of business : Trading Business 
Head office : People’s Republic of China 
Paid up capital : USD 15 million 
Shareholding : 100% 
 
 
Ek Chor Distribution Co., Shanghai 
Type of business : Non-active 
Head office : People’s Republic of China 
Paid up capital : USD 0.06 million 
Shareholding : 55% 
 
 
Ek Chor Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 
Type of business : Non-active 
Head office : People’s Republic of China 
Registered capital : USD 6.5 million 
Shareholding : 55% 
 
 
Ek Chor Distribution System Co., Ltd. 
Type of business : Non-active 
Head office : Hong Kong 
Paid up capital : HKD 2 
Shareholding : 100% 
 
 






